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NOTICE

1
Regd. office : A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur-302 004
Phone: 0141-4113645 E-mail: modernjaipuroffice@gmail.com
Website : www.moderninsulators.com CIN : L31300RJ1982PLC002460

Insulators Limited

NOTICE is hereby given that the 32nd Annual General Meeting of theMembers of Modern Insulators Limited will be held on Wednesday, 27thSeptember, 2017 at 4.00 P.M. at Registered Office of the Company atA-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur - 302 004 to transact the followingbusiness:
A. ORDINARY BUSINESS(1) To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of theCompany for the year ended 31st March, 2017 and the reports ofthe Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.(2) To appoint a director in place of Shri D.B. Deshpande (DIN:06463412), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offershimself for re-appointment.(3) Appointment of Statutory AuditorsTo consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or withoutmodification(s), the following Resolution as an OrdinaryResolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139,142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act), and the Companies (Audit and Auditors)Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and pursuant torecommendation of the Board of Directors, M/s R.B. Verma &Associates, Chartered Accountants, Jaipur (Firm Registration No.012650C) be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors ofthe Company in place of M/s B.L. Verma & Co., CharteredAccountants, Jaipur (Firm Registration No. 001064C) whosetenure expires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, at suchremuneration as may be determined by the Audit Committee inconsultation with Auditors.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s R.B. Verma & Associates,Chartered Accountants, if appointed as the Statutory Auditors ofthe Company, shall hold office for a period of five years, fromthe conclusion of this Thirty Second Annual General Meeting tillthe conclusion of Thirty Seventh Annual General Meeting of theCompany (subject to ratification of the appointment by Membersat every Annual General Meeting held after this Annual GeneralMeeting).”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of theCompany (including its Committee thereof), be and is herebyauthorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as maybe considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect tothis Resolution.”

B. SPECIAL BUSINESS
(4) To appoint Shri T.C. Chejara as Non-Executive Director of

the Company and in this regards, pass the following resolution
as a Ordinary Resolution:-
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152,161 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification ofDirectors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s)or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Shri T.C.Chejara (DIN 07619881) who was appointed as an AdditionalDirector of the Company under Section 161 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 with effect from October 1, 2016 by the Board ofDirectors and in respect of whom the Company has received anotice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013proposing his candidature for the office of Director of theCompany, be and is hereby appointed as an Director of theCompany whose office shall be liable to retire by rotation.”

(5) To re-appoint Shri Sachin Ranka as Chairman & Managing
Director of the Company and in this regards, pass the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:-
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152,196 & 197  read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions,if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)thereof, for the time being in force) and pursuant to therecommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committeeand Board of Directors, approval of the Company be and is herebyaccorded for re-appointment and payment of remuneration to ShriSachin Ranka (DIN:00335534) as Chairman and ManagingDirector of the Company for a period of five years with effectfrom 01.04.2017 on the terms and conditions of his remunerationas specified in the explanatory statement annexed thereto.”

(6) To re-appoint Shri D.B. Deshpande as Executive Director of
the Company and in this regards, pass the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:-
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196,197 and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions,if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)thereof, for the time being in force) and pursuant to therecommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committeeand Board of Directors, approval of the Company be and is herebyaccorded for re-appointment and payment of remuneration to ShriD.B. Deshpande (DIN:06463412) as an Executive Director ofthe Company for one year with effect from 01.04.2017 to31.03.2018 on the terms and conditions of his remuneration asspecified in the explanatory statement annexed thereto.”

(7) To appoint Smt. Meenu Sacheti as Independent Director of
the Company and in this regards, pass the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:-
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149,150 and 152 and other applicable provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutorymodifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)read with schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, Smt. MeenuSacheti (DIN 02266703), Director of the Company who retiresby rotation at the Annual General Meeting be and is herebyappointed as Independent Director of the Company with effectfrom 01.01.2017 for a period of five years whose office shall notbe liable to retire by rotation.”

(8) To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the financial
year ending March 31, 2018 and in this regards, pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)thereof, for the time being in force), Rajesh & Company, CostAccountants (Firm Registration No. 000031), the Cost Auditorsappointed by the Board of Directors, to conduct the audit of thecost records of the Company for the financial year ending March31, 2018, be paid the remuneration of Rs. 70,000/- andreimbursement of expenses upto Rs, 35,000/- be and is herebyratified and approved.”
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Notes:1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 and/or any otherapplicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of ItemNo. 3 to 9 set out in the Notice is annexed hereto and form part ofthis Notice.2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meetingis entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in the meeting insteadof himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of theCompany.3. The proxy form duly completed, must be deposited at the Company’sregistered office not less than 48 hours before the commencement ofthe meeting. A proxy form for the Annual General Meeting is enclosed.4. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representativesto attend the Meeting pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act,2013 are requested to send a certified copy of the relevant BoardResolution together with specimen signatures of thoserepresentative(s) authorized under the said resolution to attend andvote on their behalf at the Meeting.5. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holderwho is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.6. Members/proxies should bring the duly filled Attendance Slipenclosed herewith to attend the meeting.7. The Share transfer books and Register of members shall remain closedfrom 23rd September, 2017 to 27th September, 2017 (both daysinclusive).8. Members who have not registered their email addresses so far arerequested to register their e-mail ID’s with M/s. Beetal Financial &Computer Services Pvt. Ltd, the Registrars & Share Transfer Agentsof the Company and Members holding shares in demat mode arerequested to register their e-mail ID’s with their respective DPs incase the same is still not registered.9. In terms of Section 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 readwith the relevant Rules made thereunder, the copy of the AnnualReport including Financial Statements, Board’s report etc. and thisnotice are being sent by electronic mode, to those members who haveregistered their email ids with their respective depository participantsor with the share transfer agents of the Company, unless any member

has requested for a physical copy of the same. In case you wish toget a physical copy of the Annual Report, you may send your requestto compliance@moderninsulators.com mentioning your Folio/DP ID& Client ID. Members may also note that the Notice of the AnnualGeneral Meeting and the Annual Report for the year 2017 will alsobe available on the Company’s website www.moderninsulators.com.10. The Statutory Registers maintained under the provisions of theCompanies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the Membersat the AGM.11. Members are requested to send all communications relating to shares,change of address etc. to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents atthe following address:Beetal Financial & Computer Service Pvt. Ltd. Beetal House, 3rdFloor, 99 Madangir, Behind LSC, New Delhi-11006212. A route map showing directions to reach the venue of the AnnualGeneral Meeting is given with the Annual Report.
13. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to

dematerialize their shares by surrendering their share certificates
to their Depository Participants (DPs). Members are requested
to quote ISIN: INE219W01012 of the Company for
dematerialization of the shares.14. VotingAll persons whose names are recorded in the Register of Membersmaintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date i.e. 20thSeptember, 2017 shall also be entitled to vote at the General Meetingby availing the facility of remote e-voting or by voting at the GeneralMeeting.
Voting through Electronic means1. Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies (Management andAdministration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 ofSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements),Regulations, 2015, the Company  is pleased to provide its membersthe facility of “remote e-voting” (e-voting from a place other thanvenue of the AGM) to exercise their right to vote at the AGM. The

(9) To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modifications, the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:-
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section180(1)(a) and all other applicable provisions, if any, of theCompanies Act, 2013, consent of the Company be and is herebyaccorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for alreadymortgaged/to be mortgaged and/or charged/to be chargedpresent and/or future properties, which is situated at Abu Road,Rajasthan whether movable or immovable on first charge basisin favour of:1. Central Bank of India for its working capital assistance ofRs. 8450 Lacs (Fund Based) & Rs. 4500 Lacs (Non-FundBased) and forward exchange contract limit Rs. 1200 Lacsrespectively.2. Punjab National Bank for its working capital assistance ofRs. 3650 Lacs (Fund Based) & Rs. 1500 Lacs (Non-FundBased) respectively.

In connection with the working capital facilities alreadysanctioned/to be sanctioned by the working capital bankersto the Company to secure the said working capital facilitiestogether with interest thereon, commitment charges,liquidated damages, costs, charges, expenses and othermoneys payable by the Company in terms of letter ofsanction(s)/memorandum of the terms and conditions enteredinto by the Company in respect of working capital facilities,such security, to rank as the case may be to mortgage and/orcharges already created or to be created in future by theCompany or in such manner as may be agreed to by the banksand as may be thought expedient by the Board of Directorsof the Company.” By the Order of the BoardPlace : Ahmedabad (Gaurav Goyal)Date : 29th May, 2017 Company Secretary
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Insulators Limitedbusiness may be transacted through e-voting services provided byNational Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”).2. The facility for voting through Ballot/Poll Paper shall also bemade available at the AGM and the members attending themeeting, who have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting, shall be able to exercise their right at the AGM.3. The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed ShriDeepak Arora, Practicing Company Secretary as Scrutinizer forscrutinizing the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair andtransparent manner.4. The Results shall be declared within 48 hours after the AnnualGeneral Meeting of the Company. The results declared along withthe Scrutiniser’s Report shall be placed on the company’s websitewww.moderninsulators.com and on the website of NSDLwww.evoting.nsdl.com and the same shall also be communicatedto BSE Limited.5. Any person who becomes a member of the Company afterdispatch of the Notice of the meeting and holding shares as onthe cut-off date i.e. 20th September, 2017 may obtain the UserID and password in the manner as mentioned below.

Instructions to members for voting electronically are as under:-1. Open the attached PDF file “MIL remote e-voting.pdf” giving yourClient ID (in case you are holding shares in demat mode) or FolioNo. (in case you are holding shares in physical  mode) as password,which contains your “User ID” and “Password for e-voting”. Pleasenote that the password is an initial password. You will not receivethis PDF file if you are already registered with NSDL for e-voting.2. Launch internet browser by typing the URL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com3. Click on “Shareholder - Login”.4. Put User ID and password as initial password noted in step (1) aboveand Click Login. If you are already registered with NSDL fore-voting then you can use your existing user ID and password. If

you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using“Forgot User Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com5. Password Change Menu appears. Change the password with newpassword of your choice with minimum 8 digits/characters orcombination thereof.6. Home page of remote “e-Voting” opens. Click on e-Voting: ActiveVoting Cycles.7. Select “EVEN” of “Modern Insulators Limited”. Members can casttheir vote online 23rd, September, 2017 (9:00 am) and ends on 26thSeptember, 2017 (5:00 pm).Note: e-Voting shall not be allowed beyond said time.8. Now you are ready for “e-Voting” as “Cast Vote” page opens.9. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit”and also “Confirm”, when prompted.10. The members who have not provided email Id to the Company maycontact to the concerned person on following numbers to get the“User ID” and “Password for e-voting”, who will provide you thesame after due verification of information of members available withthe Company:-Mr. Gaurav Goyal/Nadeem ZakiPhone: 0141-4113645Email Id: - modernjaipuroffice@gmail.com11. Institutional shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.)are also required to send  scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of therelevant Board Resolution/Authority Letter etc. together with attestedspecimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who  areauthorized  to  vote,  to  the Scrutinizer’s e-mail aroracs2@gmail.comwith a copy to evoting@nsdl.co.in.12. In case of any queries, you may refer to the Frequently Asked Questions(FAQs) and e-voting user manual for members available at theDownloads sections of https://www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDLat the following toll free no.: 1800-222-990.
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 3As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, no listed companyshall appoint an audit firm as auditors for more than two terms of fiveconsecutive years. The Act also provided for additional transition periodof three years from the commencement of the Act i.e. 1st April, 2014.M/s B.L. Verma & Co. Chartered Accountants, Jaipur have completedperiod of ten years and will also be completing the additional transitionperiod of three years at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual GeneralMeeting.Accordingly, the term of the present Auditors, M/s B.L. Verma & Co.Chartered Accountants, Jaipur, expires at the conclusion of theforthcoming Annual General Meeting. The Audit Committee and theBoard of Directors have placed on record their appreciation for theprofessional services rendered by M/s B.L. Verma & Co. CharteredAccountants, Jaipur during their association with the Company as itsauditors. For the purpose of appointment of new Auditors, the AuditCommittee along with the Management invited proposals from the reputedfirms of Chartered Accountants and had detailed discussion with

representatives of those firms and recommended M/s R. B. Verma &Associates, Chartered Accountant, Jaipur (Firm Registration No.012650C), as Statutory Auditor. The Board of Directors based on therecommendation of the Audit Committee proposes the appointment ofM/s R.B. Verma & Associates, Chartered Accountant, Jaipur as theStatutory Auditors of the Company to the Members for their approval.If approved by the Members, the appointment of M/s R.B. Verma &Associates, Chartered Accountant as a Statutory Auditor will be for aperiod of five years commencing from the conclusion of Thirty SecondAnnual General Meeting till the conclusion of the Thirty Seventh AnnualGeneral Meeting (subject to ratification of the appointment by Membersat every Annual General Meeting held after this Annual General Meeting).M/s R.B. Verma & Associates, Chartered Accountant have confirmedthat their appointment, if made, would be within the limits specifiedunder Section 141(3)(g) of the Act and that they are not disqualified tobe appointed as statutory auditor in terms of the provisions of the provisoto Section 139 (1), Section 141(2) and Section 141(3) of the Act and the
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Insulators Limitedprovisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.The Board of Directors recommends the Resolution at Item No. 3 of theNotice for your approval. None of the Directors, Key ManagerialPersonnel and their relatives are concerned or interested in the Resolutionat Item No. 3 of the Notice.

Item No. 4Pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, theArticles of Association of the Company and as recommended by theNomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors, at itsmeeting held on 22nd September, 2016, appointed Shri T.C. Chejara (DIN07619881), as an Additional Director of the Company, w.e.f. 1st October,2016.As an Additional Director, Shri T.C. Chejara holds office upto the dateof this Annual General Meeting (AGM) and is eligible to be appointed asa Director of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 160 ofthe Act, the Company has received a notice in writing along with thedeposit of requisite amount from Shri T.C. Chejara, signifying hiscandidature for the office of the Director of the Company.Shri T.C. Chejara is B.Com and also a fellow member of the Institute ofChartered Accountants of India. He has more than 40 years rich experiencein the field of accounts, finance and management and has consented toact as a Director of the Company.The disclosure relating to Shri T.C. Chejara, as required under theprovisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, is set out as an Annexureto the Notice.The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions set out at Item No. 4of this Notice for the approval by the Members.Except Shri T.C. Chejara, being an appointee, none of the other Directors,Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interestedin the Resolution at Item No. 4 of the Notice.
Item No. 5The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 28th March, 2017 re-appointed Shri Sachin Ranka (DIN 00335534) as Chairman & ManagingDirector of the Company with effect from April 1, 2017 for a period offive years with remuneration subject to approval of shareholders inensuing Annual General Meeting. The terms and conditions of the re-appointment and payment of remuneration to Shri Sachin Ranka asChairman & Managing Director have also been approved by theNomination & Remuneration Committee of Directors of the Company.The term and conditions of remuneration to Shri Sachin Ranka are asunder :-i) Basic Salary:-` 500000/- per month for first year and thereafter increase not exceeding20% per annum.ii) Perquisites and allowances:-a) Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund as per Company’sRules but not exceeding 12% of the basic salary.b) Company’s contribution towards National Pension System (NPS)as per Company’s rules but not exceeding 10% of the basic salary.c) Reimbursement of medical expenses for self and family upto` 15000/- per annum.d) Gratuity not exceeding half month’s salary for each completed yearof service as provided in Gratuity Act.

e) Free use of car with driver for Company’s business.f) Free Telephone facility at residence for Company’s business.g) Fees of Clubs – subject to maximum of two clubs, the total amountof which shall not exceed ` 200000/- per annum.iii) He shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the meetings of    Boardof Directors or Committee thereof.The disclosure relating to Shri Sachin Ranka, as required under theprovisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, is set out as an Annexureto the Notice.The resolution seeks the approval of members in terms of Sections 196and 197 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder for the re-appointment and payment of remuneration to Shri Sachin Ranka asChairman & Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 yearfrom 1st April, 2017.Except Shri Sachin Ranka, being an appointee, none of the other Directors,Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interestedin the Resolution at Item No. 5 of the Notice.
Item No. 6The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28th March, 2017 hadre-appointed Shri D.B. Deshpande as an Executive Director of theCompany for 1 year from 1st April, 2017 with remuneration subject toapproval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. The terms andconditions of the re-appointment and payment of remuneration to ShriD.B. Deshpande as an Executive Director have also been approved bythe Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Directors of the Company.The term and conditions of remuneration to Shri D.B. Deshpande are asunder :-i) Basic Salary:-` 5,16,000/- per month and increase not exceeding Rs.100000/- permonth from 01.04.2017.ii) Perquisites and allowances:-a) Furnished residential accommodation with water, gas, electricityetc. monetary value of which will be evaluated as per rule 3(a) ofthe Income Tax Rules, 1962, subject to an amount equivalent to10% of basic salary deductible every month.b) Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund as per Company’sRules but not exceeding 12% of the basic salary.c) Reimbursement of medical expenses and leave travel concessionfor self and family, the total cost of which to the company shall notexceed 3% of the basic salary.d) Gratuity not exceeding half month’s salary for each completed yearof service as provided in Gratuity Act.e) Free use of car with driver, for Company’s business.f) Free Telephone facility at residence. All personal long distance callsshall be billed by the Company.g) Encashment of leaves as per Company’s Rules.iii) He shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the meetings of Boardof Directors or Committee thereof.The disclosure relating to Shri D.B. Deshpande, as required under theprovisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Details of Director Seeking Appointment/Re-Appointment at the Forthcoming Annual General Meeting[In pursuance of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Name Shri T.C. Chejara Shri Sachin Ranka Shri D.B. Deshpande Smt. Meenu Sacheti

DIN 07619881 00335534 06463412 02266703
Date of Birth 10/09/1953 28/01/1963 11/11/1952 17/07/1962
Qualifications Chartered Accountant MBA (Finance) B.E Electricals B.Com
Expertise in Specific area Finance and Accounts Finance & Corporate Electric Engineering Management andManagement and Corporate Management Administration
Date of First appointment 01/10/2016 30/11/1992 01/01/2013 31/03/2015
on the Board of the Company

Relationship with other None None None None
Director

Shareholding in the Company 150 500 Nil Nil
Directorship held in other Modern Denim Limited Modern Denim Limited Nil Modern Denim Limited
Public companies

Chairman/ Member in the Chairman of the Audit Chairman of the Board Nil Nil
Committees of the Boards of Committee and Stakeholders and CSR committee of
companies in which he is Relationship committee of Modern Denim Limited
Director Modern Denim Limited

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, is set out as an Annexureto the Notice.The resolution seeks the approval of members in terms of Sections 196and 197 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder for the re-appointment and payment of remuneration to Shri D.B. Deshpande as anExecutive Director of the Company for a period of one year from 1stApril, 2017.Except Shri D.B. Deshpande, being an appointee, none of the otherDirectors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned orinterested in the Resolution at Item No. 6 of the Notice.
Item No. 7As per the provisions of SEBI (Listing obligation and DisclosureRequirement) Regulation, 2015, atleast half of the Board of Directorsshall comprise of Independent Directors and to comply the Listingprovisions. Smt. Meenu Sacheti who was appointed as Non-executiveDirector of the Company and who meets the criteria of Independence interms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (ListingObligation & Disclosure Requirement), Regulations, 2015, it isrecommended to change the designation of Smt. Meenu Sacheti fromNon-executive Director to Independent Director.The disclosure relating to Smt. Meenu Sacheti, as required under theprovisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, is set out as an Annexureto the Notice.The resolution seeks the approval of members in terms of Sections 149,150 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunderfor the appointment of Smt. Meenu Sacheti as an Independent Directorof the Company for a period of 5 year from 1st January, 2017.Except Smt. Meenu Sacheti, being an appointee, none of the other

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned orinterested in the Resolution at Item No. 7 of the Notice.
Item No. 8The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approvedthe appointment and remuneration of the Cost Auditors to conduct theaudit of the cost records of the Company across for the financial yearending March 31, 2018. In accordance with the provisions of Section148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit andAuditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors asrecommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board ofDirectors, has to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly,consent of the members is sought for passing of resolution for ratificationof the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors of the Company for thefinancial year ending March 31, 2018.No Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is concerned orinterested in the resolution. The Board recommends the resolution setout at Item No. 9 for approval of the members.
Item No. 9Working capital bankers of the Company have sanctioned enhanced limitson the basis of creation of first charge on the fixed assets of the Insulatordivision of the Company.As the mortgage or charge on properties to secure the working capitalfacilities on first charge basis may be regarded as disposal of the wholeor substantially the whole of the Insulators division of the Company, it isconsidered necessary to seek members approval pursuant to the provisionsof section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013.No Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is interested orconcerned in the resolution. The Board recommends the resolution setforth in Item No. 8 for approval of the members.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS
The MembersYour Directors are pleased to present the 32nd Annual Report of theCompany together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financialyear ended 31st March, 2017.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016Net Sales and Other Income 520.02 467.51Profit before exceptional items & tax 21.93 27.07Add : Exceptional Items 5.03 4.56Profit before tax 26.96 31.63Less : Tax expense (Deferred tax) (2.92) 2.42Profit for the year after tax 29.88 29.21Balance Brought forward from 243.03 213.82previous yearLess : Impact of Amalgamation (Net) 59.13 –Balance carried to Balance sheet 213.78 243.03Note : Pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation of Modern Terry TowelsLimited with the Company approved by Hon’ble BIFR under the provisionof Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985, the financialresults of the year ended March 31, 2017 are not comparable with the yearended March 31, 2016.

OPERATIONSThe overall performance of the Company has been satisfactory. Variousfactors have contributed for satisfactory performance of your Companyinter alia includes balancing of plant and machinery, continuous effortsfor production of value added insulators and diversification. The netturnover for the year has been ` 514.17 crores and profit before interest& depreciation ` 44.24 crores.During the year under review, no amount from the profit was transferredto General Reserve. Keeping in view the need to conserve the Company’sresources for meeting the enhanced working capital requirement andbalancing the manufacturing equipments, your directors deemed it prudentnot to recommend any dividend for the year.
Insulators DivisionDuring the financial year 2017, despite challenging business environmentthe division has registered a growth of 6.14%. The net turnover for theyear has been ` 342.25 crores as against ̀  322.47 crores and profit beforeinterest & depreciation of ` 46.70 crores as against ` 41.42 crores ofprevious year.
Yarn DivisionThe turnover of the division has been ` 128.10 crores as against ` 138.54crores in previous year and profit before interest & depreciation has been` 5.82 crores as against ` 6.68 crores in previous year. Turnover andprofitability has been marginally lower due to competitive marketconditions.
Terry Towels DivisionDuring the year Modern Terry Towels Limited has been merged with theCompany and has become division of the Company. The turnover of thisdivision has been ` 43.82 crores and loss before interest & depreciationhas been ` 8.28 crores. It is mainly due to low capacity utilization andshortage of working capital. However post merger the company isexpecting to achieve constant growth of the division and increase incapacity utilization and profitability.

EXPORTSThe Company is one of the major exporters of H.T. Porcelain Insulatorsfrom India. The Company has achieved export turnover of ̀  101.14 croresduring the year under review as compared to ` 84.00 crores in previousyear showing an impressive growth of 20%. Inspite of stiff competitionfrom China and slowdown of global economy, export has increasedbecause of sustained quality and by tapping & revival of potentialcustomers. In addition, the company possesses the ability to cater to thediverse needs of global customers and is concentrating to strengthen itspresence in all corners of global market. Your company is a regular supplierto all the major multinational OEMs for their world wide requirements ofquality Porcelain Insulators.
ANALYSIS AND REVIEWYour Company continues to be a leader in the manufacture of Extra HighVoltage Insulators in the country. Despite stiff competition buyers showinterest in your company’s product for its quality & timely delivery andhence your directors are confident of achieving better working results inthe coming years.  Your Company is having well equipped R & Dlaboratory recognized by Govt. of India, Ministry of Science & Technologywhich takes care of the stringent quality requirements of customers andensures quality and reliability in each and every product manufactured.In-house R&D activities have a thrust on qualitative development toreplace expensive input raw material & to bring consistency in quality ofthe products under manufacture. The future of the Insulator industry lookspromising due to major thrust on power sector reforms and speedyimplementation of new power projects. Major Railway electrical projectsas well as dedicated freight corridor project will increase demand forRailway Insulators. We are putting our efforts to promote Long RodInsulators to all potential SEB’s and increase our share in domestic market.Your company has established fully equipped SGI and Aluminium foundryto cater demand from various segments apart from fulfilling company’smajor captive requirement of SGI and aluminium castings in time. Thiswill give further boost to the revenue of the Company in coming years.
Industry OverviewThe power generation, transmission and distribution sector is the keygrowth driver for the Insulators industry. The Government of India isputting emphasis on power sector reforms in overcoming impediments;it will however take some time before on-ground demand improvement isvisible. Over the past few years, demand in domestic insulators markethas been sluggish, primarily due to poor financial health of state utilities,which has impacted new projects and delay in the execution of on-goingprojects.The Indian Textile Industry is one of the leading textile industries in theworld. It is one of the key sectors of India’s manufacturing segment as itcontributes significantly to the economy in terms of employmentgeneration and foreign exchange revenue. The industry is taking all stepsto promote textile exports, which is the need of the hour. Costs areincreasing due to rising input costs, including labour and power. Focuson new product development and value added products is continuing inthis segment.
Opportunities & ChallengesYour Company is engaged in the manufacturing of High Quality Solidcore post insulators for Disconnectors and sub-station requirements,Hollow insulators for Circuit Breakers, Lightning Arrestors andInstruments Transformers, Long rod Insulators for Overhead TransmissionLines, Railway Insulators, line Post Insulators for Distribution Segment.Your Company makes sustainable efforts to provide varieties of Insulatorsto the whole world and in the process nurtures long-term relations withcustomers. Your company has also invested in plant and machineryand equipments for making investment to increase the production capacityof finished products to grab the opportunity in the emerging globalmarkets.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Crores)
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Insulators LimitedThe market share of China in the international trade has been steadilyincreasing in recent years. Additionally, increased acceptance of alternatetechnologies has further impacted the domestic insulators industry.The future for the Indian textile industry looks promising, due to strongdomestic consumption. India has the potential to double its market sizein the long run as China is losing its competitive advantage in textilesmainly on account of increasing labour & power costs and focus on thedomestic market with high value products. The shift from China to Indiais expected to happen in the long run, to make India a dependable sourceof supply for the World. However, there are several challenges ahead forthe Textile industry for enhancing its competitive strength and globalpositioning in terms of inflexible labour laws, poor infrastructure,competition from low cost neighbouring countries which will have to beaddressed to sustain the growth momentum of the industry.

Risks & ChallengesThe current economic environment, in combination with significantgrowth ambitions of the Company, carries with it an evolving set of risks.Your Company recognizes that these risks need to be managed to protectcustomers, employees, shareholders and other stakeholders to achieve ourbusiness objectives. In line with this, your Company has put in place adetailed Risk Management Policy which identifies the various types ofrisks at all levels of the Company. Early risk identification along withappropriate measures has enabled the Company to mitigate all threatswhich may arise from time to time. Also, the possibility of occurrence ofthe risk event and the magnitude of their consequences on the organizationis determined and used to prioritize risk management.
OutlookGovernment initiatives are expected to catalyse demand improvement innear future. With Government’s focus on ‘Power for All’ by 2019 themedium to long term fundamentals look encouraging. The company isalert and in touch with the ground realities of the changing businessenvironment and is confident of increasing the Indian share in the worldmarket.The overall business outlook for the company is promising withimprovement in overall economic environment. The company continuesto examine the possibilities of expansion and shall make the necessaryinvestments when attractive opportunities arise.
AMALGAMATION OF MODERN TERRY TOWELS LIMITED
WITH THE COMPANYDuring the year, Hon’ble Board for Industrial & Financial Reconstruction(BIFR) has sanctioned the scheme of amalgamation of Modern TerryTowels Limited (MTTL) with your Company with effect from 01.01.2008(the Appointed Date) under the provisions of Sick Industrial Companies(Special Provisions) Act, 1985. The Scheme has been made effective on15th September, 2016. The merger results in consolidation of twocompanies which facilitate savings in the administrative cost and alsobeneficial in terms of saving of Income Tax under the provisions of Section72A of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
DEMERGER OF YARN DIVISION OF THE COMPANYAs reported earlier, a scheme of Demerger under section 391 to 394 ofthe Companies Act, 1956 was pending before the High Court of Rajasthanat Jaipur to demerge the Yarn Division of the Company. However, theMinistry of Corporate Affairs has notified the provisions related to NationalCompany Law Tribunal (NCLT) and therefore the proceedings pendingbefore Rajasthan High Court have been transferred to NCLT which isunder consideration before Hon’ble NCLT, New Delhi. The demergerwould result in benefit to the shareholders, creditors, employees andgeneral public.
SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIESDuring the year under review, the Company has sold its Investments inSubsidiary Company i.e. M/s Motile Power Trade Private Limited and

therefore ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. Hence, the companyhas not prepared the Consolidated Financial Statement.The Company does not have any Joint Ventures & Associate Companiesduring the year.
SHARE CAPITALDuring the year under review, the Company has allotted 25400400 EquityShares of the Company to the eligible shareholders of erstwhile ModernTerry Towels Limited pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation approvedby Hon’ble BIFR.  Consequently, the paid up equity share capital of theCompany stood at ` 47.14 crores.
PARTICULAR OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTPursuant to the provisions of Section 186(4) of the Act and SEBI (LODR),disclosures on particulars relating to loans, advances and investments areprovided as part of the Financial Statements. There are no guaranteesissued or securities provided by your Company in terms of Section 186of the Act, read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)Rules, 2014.
DEPOSITSDuring the year under review, your Company has not accepted or renewedany Deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the Act, read with theCompanies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Hence, the requirementof furnishing details of deposits which are not in compliance with ChapterV of the Act is not applicable.
CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIESDuring the financial year under review, all contracts/ arrangements/transactions entered into by your Company with Related Parties were onarm’s-length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There were notransactions with Related Parties, which qualify as material transactionunder the SEBI (LODR). Since all the contracts/arrangements/transactionswith Related Parties, during the year under review, were in the ordinarycourse of business and at arm’s-length and were not considered material,disclosure in Form AOC-2 under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act, readwith the Companies (Accounts of Companies) Rules, 2014, is notapplicable. The details of contracts and arrangement with RelatedParties of your Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2017,are given in Note No. 33 to the Financial Statements forming partof this Annual Report. The Policy on Related Party Transactions, asapproved by the Board, is available on your Company’s website,www.moderninsulators.com.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCEYour Directors are committed to best practices of Corporate Governance.Corporate Governance principles form an integral part of the core valuesof your Company. In terms of Regulation 34(3) of the Securities andExchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and DisclosureRequirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate report on CorporateGovernance, along with a certificate from the Practicing CompanySecretaries on its compliance, forms an integral part of this Annual Report.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELDuring the year under review, the Board accepted the request of ShriH.L. Sharma for an early retirement from the office of the Whole-TimeDirector, with effect from 30th September, 2016. The Board placed onrecord its deep appreciation for the valuable contribution and servicesrendered by Shri H.L. Sharma during his association, spanning over threedecades, with the Group.Subject to the approval of the shareholders, the Board has, on therecommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,appointed Shri T.C. Chejara  (DIN: 07619881) as an Additional Directorunder the category Non-Executive Non- Independent Director of theCompany w.e.f. 1st October, 2016.  As an Additional Director, Shri T.C.
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Insulators LimitedChejara holds office upto the date of the ensuing AGM and is eligible tobe appointed as a Director of the Company. The Company has received anotice from Shri T.C. Chejara, along with the requisite deposit, signifyinghis candidature for appointment as a Director at the ensuing AGM. Theresolution seeking the appointment of Shri T.C. Chejara as Director w.e.f.1st October, 2016 have been included in the Notice of the AGM. YourDirectors recommend the resolution for your approval.During the year, Shri Sachin Ranka (DIN: 00335534), Chairman &Managing Director of the Company whose term expires on 31st March,2017 has been reappointed by the Board of Directors for a period of fiveyears from 1st April, 2017 with remuneration. The resolution seeking there-appointment of Shri Sachin Ranka as Chairman & Managing Directorw.e.f. 1st April, 2017 has been included in the Notice of the AGM. YourDirectors recommend the resolution for your approval.During the year, Shri D.B. Deshpande (DIN: 06463412), ExecutiveDirector of the Company whose term expires on 31st March, 2017 hasbeen reappointed by the Board of Directors for a period of one year from01.04.2017 with remuneration. The resolution seeking the re-appointmentof Shri D.B. Deshpande as Executive Director w.e.f. 1st April, 2017 hasbeen included in the Notice of the AGM. Your Directors recommend theresolution for your approval.In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 and other applicableprovisions of Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of SEBI (LODR),Regulations, 2015, Smt. Meenu Sacheti, Director of the Company isproposed to be appointed as an Independent Director of the Company fora period of five year w.e.f. 1st January, 2017. Smt. Meenu Sacheti fulfilsthe conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules madethereunder for her appointment as an Independent Director of theCompany.  The resolution seeking the appointment of Smt. Meenu Sachetias an Independent Director w.e.f. 1st January, 2017 has been included inthe Notice of the AGM. Your Directors recommend the resolution foryour approval.In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Shri D.B. Deshpande(DIN: 06463412), Executive Director of the Company, will retire byrotation at the ensuing AGM and, being eligible, have offered himself forre-appointment. Resolutions seeking their appointment have been includedin the Notice of the AGM. Your Directors recommend the Resolutions foryour approval.In terms of the provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of the Act, read withthe Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Rules, 2014, Shri Sachin Ranka, Chairman & Managing Director, ShriD.B. Deshpande, Executive Director, Shri D.S. Singhvi, Chief FinancialOfficer and Shri Gaurav Goyal, Company Secretary are the Key ManagerialPersonnel (KMP) of the Company. The appointment and remuneration ofDirectors and KMPs are as per policy of the Company.The Company has received declarations from all the Independent directorsof the Company that they meet the criteria of independence as laid downunder section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (ListingObligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

BOARD EVALUATIONPursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR)and in terms of the Framework of the Board Performance Evaluation, theNomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have carriedout an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, theperformance of various Committees of the Board, individual Directorsand the Chairman. The manner in which the evaluation has been carriedout has been set out in the Corporate Governance Report which formspart of this Report. The details of the programme for familiarisation ofthe Independent Directors of your Company are available on theCompany’s website, www.moderninsulators.com.

MEETING OF THE BOARDDuring the year ended 31st March, 2017, six Board Meetings were held,on 25th June, 2016, 14th September, 2016, 22nd September, 2016, 30thDecember, 2016, 14th February, 2017 and 28th March, 2017. Furtherdetails on the Board Meetings are provided in the Corporate GovernanceReport, forming part of this Annual Report.
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit CommitteeThe Board has constituted an Audit Committee comprising of Shri R.Raniwala, Shri S.B.L. Jain and Shri T.C. Chejara as its members. Furtherdetails relating to the Audit Committee are provided in the CorporateGovernance Report, forming part of this Annual Report.All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee, during the year,were accepted by the Board of Directors of the Company.
Nomination and Remuneration CommitteeThe Board has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committeecomprising of Shri R. Raniwala, Shri S.B.L. Jain and Shri P.K. Rao as itsmembers.The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination andRemuneration Committee, formulated the Remuneration Policy of theCompany. This Policy is available on the Company’s websitewww.moderninsulators.com.Further details relating to the Nomination and Remuneration Committeeand policy are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, formingpart of this Annual Report.
Corporate Social Responsibility CommitteeThe Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committeecomprising of Shri Sachin Ranka, Shri R. Raniwala and Shri T.C. Chejaraas its members. Further details relating to the Corporate SocialResponsibility Committee are provided in the Corporate GovernanceReport, forming part of this Annual Report.
Stakeholders’ Relationship CommitteeThe Board has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committeecomprising of Shri R. Raniwala, Shri S.B.L. Jain and Shri T.C. Chejaraas its members. Further details relating to the Stakeholders RelationshipCommittee are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, formingpart of this Annual Report.
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTIn terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directorswould like to state that:(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accountingstandards have been followed alongwith proper explanation relatingto material departures;(b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied themconsistently and made judgments and estimates that were reasonableand prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs ofthe Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit andloss of the Company for that period;(c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for themaintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with theprovisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Companyand for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concernbasis;(e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followedby the Company and that such internal financial controls are adequateand were operating effectively;(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance withthe provisions of all applicable laws and that such system wereadequate and operating effectively.
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AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT
Statutory AuditorsM/s. B.L. Verma & Co., Chartered Accountants, Jaipur (ICAI FirmRegistration No. 001064C) is the Statutory Auditors of the Company.The present statutory auditors have completed their tenure of two termsof 5 consecutive years and also an additional period of 3 years as stipulatedunder section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013. M/s B.L. Verma & Co.Chartered Accountants, Jaipur will thus be holding the office of statutoryauditors upto the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting.The Board of Directors, on recommendation of the Audit Committee, hasproposed to appoint M/s R.B. Verma & Associates, Chartered Accountants,Jaipur (ICAI Firm Registration No. 012650C), as the Statutory Auditorsof the Company for a period of 5 years commencing from the conclusionof 32nd Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 37th Annual GeneralMeeting. M/s R.B. Verma & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Jaipurhas consented to the said appointment, and confirm that their appointment,if made, would be within the limits mentioned u/s 141 (3)(g) of theCompanies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014.The Board places on records its appreciation for the contribution of M/sB.L Verma & Co., Chartered Accountants, Jaipur during their tenure asthe statutory auditors of the Company.The observations made by the Statutory Auditors on the FinancialStatements of the Company, in their Report for the financial year ended31st March, 2017, read with the explanatory notes therein, are self-explanatory and, therefore, do not call for any further explanation orcomments from the Board under Section 134(3)(f) of the Act.
Secretarial AuditorPursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act, read with theCompanies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s JAKS & Associates,Company Secretaries, Jaipur to conduct the secretarial audit for thefinancial year 2016-17. The Secretarial Audit Report, issued by M/s JAKS& Associates, Company Secretaries for the financial year 2016-17, formspart of this Report, and is set out in Annexure ‘A’ to this Report. Theobservations in Secretarial Audit Report which pertains mainly listingagreement requirements, stock exchange compliances etc. It is clarifiedthat the company has started all the compliances related to stock exchangeand are in process of revocation of its suspension from the Bombay StockExchange.
Cost AuditorsPursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, read with theCompanies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from timeto time, the Board at its meeting held on 29th May, 2017, has appointedM/s Rajesh & Company, Cost Accountants, Jaipur (Firm RegistrationNo. 000031), as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost recordsof the Company for the financial year 2017-18. As required under theCompanies Act, 2013 a resolution seeking Members approval forremuneration payable to the Cost Auditors forms part of the Noticeconvening Annual General Meeting for ratification.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURNIn accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, anextract of the Annual Return of the Company for the financial year ended31st March, 2017, is given in Annexure ‘B’ to this Report.
VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICYThe Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for reporting of concernsthrough the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company, which is in complianceof the provisions of Section 177 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of theCompanies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and SEBI(LODR), Regulations, 2015. The Policy provides for framework andprocess whereby concerns can be raised by its employees against any

kind of discrimination, harassment, victimisation or any other unfairpractice being adopted against them. Adequate safeguards are providedagainst victimisation to those who avail of the mechanism, and access tothe Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases is provided tothem. The details of the Vigil Mechanism are also provided in theCorporate Governance Report and the Whistle Blower Policy has beenuploaded on the website of the Company, www.moderninsulators.com.
RISK MANAGEMENTThe Company has framed and implemented a Risk Management Policyto identify the various business risks. This framework seeks to createtransparency, minimize adverse impact on the business objectives andenhance the Company’s competitive advantage. The risk managementpolicy defines the risk management approach across the enterprise atvarious levels including documentation and reporting.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACYThe internal control framework is designed to ensure proper safeguardingof assets, maintaining proper accounting records and providing reliablefinancial information and other data. This system is supplemented byinternal audit, reviews by the management and documented policies,guidelines and procedures. The Company has a well-defined organizationstructure, authority levels, internal rules and guidelines for conductingthe business transactions. The Company intends to undertake furthermeasures as necessary in line with its intent to adhere to procedures,guidelines and regulations as applicable in a transparent manner.An external independent firm carries out the internal audit of the Companyoperations and reports its findings to the Audit Committee. Internal Auditalso evaluates the functioning and quality of internal controls and providesassurance of its adequacy and effectiveness through periodic reporting.Internal Audit is carried out as per risk based internal audit plan which isreviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company. The Committeeperiodically reviews the findings and suggestions for improvement andis apprised on the implementation status in respect of the actionable items.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, read with theCompanies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, theBoard of Directors of your Company has constituted a Corporate SocialResponsibility (CSR) Committee, which is chaired by Shri Sachin Ranka.The Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board aCorporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating theactivities to be undertaken by the Company, which has been approvedby the Board, and the same is available on the Company’s website,www.moderninsulators.com.The Company is a caring corporate citizen and lays significant emphasison development of the host communities around which it operates. TheCompany, with this intent, has identified several projects relating to SocialEmpowerment and Welfare, Environment Sustainability, Health Care andEducation during the year, and initiated various activities in and aroundits plant location. The work on several initiatives has picked up momentumduring the year, resulting in a spend of ` 26.66 Lacs. The Annual Reporton CSR activities is given in Annexure ‘C’ to this Report.
PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEESIn accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read withRules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remunerationof Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the names and other particulars ofemployees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits, set off in theaforesaid Rules, including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)thereof for the time being in force, are to be set out in the Board’s Report,as an annexure thereto. In line with the provisions of Section 136(1) ofthe Act, the Report and Accounts, as set out therein, are being sent to allMembers of your Company excluding the aforesaid information aboutthe employees. Any Member, who is interested in obtaining these
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Insulators Limitedparticulars about employees, may write to the Company Secretary at theRegistered Office of your Company. The aforesaid addendum is alsoavailable for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of theCompany from 21 days before the AGM till the date of the ensuing AGM,during business hours on working days. Disclosures pertaining toremuneration and other details, as required under Section 197(12) of theAct read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment andRemuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are given inAnnexure ‘D’ to this Report.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGOInformation relating to the conservation of energy, technology absorptionand foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as stipulated under Section134(3)(m) of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,is given in Annexure ‘E’ to this Report.
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS EFFECTING
THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANYExcept as disclosed elsewhere in this Report, no material changes andcommitments, which could affect the Company’s financial position, haveoccurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and thedate of this Report.
LISTING OF SHARESThe shares of the Company are listed at BSE Limited but trading of theshares is suspended. However, the Board of Directors has decided to revokethe suspension at BSE. The Company has filed an application to BSE forRevocation of suspension of trading in equity shares of the Company andthe same is under consideration.

GENERALYour Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respectof the following items as there were no transactions on these items duringthe year under review:
• Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, votingor otherwise;• Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of theCompany under any Scheme;• There were no revisions in the financial statements;• No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators orCourts or Tribunals which impact the going concern status and theCompany’s  operations in the future; and• No cases or complaints were received pursuant to the SexualHarassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition andRedressal) Act, 2013.
ACKNOWLEDGMENTYour Directors express their deep sense of gratitude to the banks, financialinstitutions, stakeholders, business associates, Central and StateGovernments and all regulatory bodies for their co-operation and supportand look forward to their continued support in future.We very warmly thank all of our employees for their contribution to yourCompany’s performance. We applaud them for their superior levels ofcompetence, dedication and commitment to your Company.On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sachin RankaPlace : Ahmedabad Chairman & Managing DirectorDate : 29th May, 2017  DIN: 00335534
To,The Members
MODERN INSULATORS LIMITEDWe have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicablestatutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices byModern Insulators Limited (hereinafter called the company). SecretarialAudit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis forevaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressingmy opinion thereon.Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms andreturns filed and other records maintained by the company and also theinformation provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorizedrepresentatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby reportthat in  our opinion, the company has, during the audit period coveringthe financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 complied with the statutoryprovisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the mannerand subject to the reporting made hereinafter.We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returnsfiled and other records maintained by the Company for the financial yearended on 31st March, 2017 according to the provisions of:(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and therules made thereunder;(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framedthereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules andregulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign DirectInvestment, Overseas Direct Investment and External CommercialBorrowings;(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under theSecurities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SubstantialAcquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition ofInsider Trading) Regulations, 1992;(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capitaland Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicableto the Company during the Audit Period);(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee StockOption Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company during theAudit Period);(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listingof Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to theCompany during the Audit Period);(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to anIssue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regardingthe Companies Act and dealing with client;(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of EquityShares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company duringthe Audit Period); and(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of

Annexure A to Boards’ Report
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2017[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
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Insulators LimitedSecurities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the Companyduring the Audit Period);(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition ofInsider Trading) Regulations, 2015; and(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(vi) The laws as are applicable specifically to the Company are as under:Petroleum Act, 1934 and rules made there under;We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses ofthe following:(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of CompanySecretaries of India (Notified w.e.f. 01.07.2015).(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company withBSE limited, Calcutta Stock Exchange and Ahmadabad StockExchange. But the trading of the Company with stock exchangesis suspendedWe further report that during the financial year Modern Terry TowelsLimited has been merged with the Company pursuant to the order ofHon’ble BIFR dated 28.07.2016. The Company has filed requisite formin ROC and the same have been approved.During the period under review the Company has complied with theprovisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below:-1. The Company was not complying with the provisions of listingagreement and SEBI Rules and Regulations, wherever applicable withthe Company till December 2016 and after that Company has takendecision to initiate process for revocation of trading suspension andstarted for listing compliances.2. The shares of the Company are not in dematerialized from thereforethe Company has not comply with the provisions of the DepositoriesAct, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-Laws framed there under tillDecember 2016 and after that the Company has Started fordematerialisation of shares and inform all shareholders to demat their

shares lying in physical format.3. The Company has not disclosed in the borad report number of board &committe meeting attended by each director as per SS-1.
We further report thatThe Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with properbalance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and IndependentDirectors in compliance with the Companies Act 2013 and in accordancewith the listing agreement. The changes in the composition of the Boardof Directors that took place during the period under review were carriedout in compliance with the provisions of the Act.Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days inadvance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informationand clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and formeaningful participation at the meeting.Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ viewsare captured and recorded as part of the minutes.We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in thecompany commensurate with the size and operations of the company tomonitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulationsand guidelines.This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed asANNEXURE ‘A’ and forms an integral part of this report.

FOR JAKS & ASSOCIATESPracticing Company Secretaries
Deepak Arora[Partner]Place : Jaipur FCS No. 5104Date : 29th May, 2017 C P No.:  3641

ANNEXURE - I to the Secretarial Audit ReportTo,The MembersModern Insulators LimitedOur Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on theseSecretarial records based on our audit.2. We have followed the Audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents ofthe Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that theprocesses and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company. We have relied upon theReport of Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder relating to maintenance of Books ofAccounts, papers and financial statements of the relevant Financial Year, which give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of thecompany.4. We have relied upon the Report of Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of Fiscal Laws, like the Income Tax Act, 1961 & Finance Acts, theCustoms Act, 1962, the Central Excise Act, 1944 and Service Tax.5. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of Laws, rules and regulations and happening ofevents etc.6. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Ourexamination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which themanagement has conducted the affairs of the Company.
           FOR JAKS & ASSOCIATESPracticing Company SecretariesDeepak Arora[Partner]Place : Jaipur FCS No. 5104Date : 29th May, 2017 C P No.:  3641
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Annexure B to Boards’ Report
FORM NO. MGT 9 (EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN)

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2017Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.
I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:1 CIN : L31300RJ1982PLKC0024602 Registration Date : 5/1/19823 Name of the Company : MODERN INSULATORS LIMITED4 Category/Sub-category of the Company : Company Limited by Shares5 Address of the Registered office  & contact details : A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur-3020046 Whether listed company : Yes7 Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. : Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd. Beetal House,

3rd floor, 99, Madangir, New Delhi-110062; Tele:- 011-29961281

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)
S. No. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the Product/service %  to total turnover of the company1 Insulators & Metal Parts 03233 66%2 Yarn 17111 26%
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES The company does not have any holding, subsidiary and associate company
IV.    SHARE HOLDING PATTERN  (Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)
(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% of Total % of Total
Demat Physical Total  Shares Demat Physical Total  Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indiana) Individual/ HUF - 2000 2000 0.01 2000 - 2000 0.01 -b) Central Govt - - - - - - - -c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - -d) Bodies Corp. - 11874339 11874339 54.61 11874339 15682398 27556737 58.45 3.84e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - -f) Any other - - - - - - - -

Sub Total (A) (1) - 11876339 11876339 54.62 11876339 15682398 27558737 58.46 3.84
(2) Foreigna) NRI Individuals - - - - - - - - -b) Other Individuals - - - - - - - - -c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -d) Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total (A) (2) - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL (A) - 11876339 11876339 54.62 11876339 15682398 27558737 58.46 3.84

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutionsa) Mutual Funds - 1000000 1000000 4.60 1000000 821 1000821 2.12 -2.48b) Banks / FI - 1450 1450 0.01 - 4154947 4154947 8.81 8.81c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -g) FIIs - - - - 146772 146772 0.31 0.31h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1):- - 1001450 1001450 4.61 1000000 4302540 5302540 11.25 6.64

%
Change
during

the year
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2. Non-Institutionsa) Bodies Corp.i) Indian - 305538 305538 1.41 45190 1222825 1268015 2.69 1.28ii) Overseas - - - - - - - -b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -i) Individual shareholders holdingnominal share capital uptoRs. 1 lakh - 6739461 6739461 31.00 289885 10101308 10391193 22.04 -8.95ii) Individual shareholders holdingnominal share capital in excessof Rs 1 lakh - 1224487 1224487 5.63 513883 1327487 1841370 3.91 -1.73c) Others (specify)Non Resident Indians - 596225 596225 2.74 500 766869 767369 1.63 -1.11Individual (HuF) - - - - 14176 - 14176 0.03 0.03Trusts - - - - 500 - 500 - -
Sub-total (B)(2):- - 8865711 8865711 40.77 864134 13418489 14282623 30.30 -10.48
Total Public (B) - 9867161 9867161 45.38 1864134 17721029 19585163 41.54 -3.84

C. Shares held by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - - - -
Grand Total (A+B+C) - 21743500 21743500 100.00 13740473 33403427 47143900 100.00 0.00- Issued during the year to the shareholders of erstwhile Modern Terry Towels Limited pursuant to scheme of amalgamation approved by Hon'ble BIFR.

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter

SN Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of % of total % of Shares No. of % of total  % of Shares
Shares Shares of the Pledged/ Shares Shares of the Pledged/

company to total shares encumbered company to total shares encumbered1 Shri Sachin Ranka 500 0.0023 - 500 0.0011 - -2 Shri Shreyans Ranka 500 0.0023 - 500 0.0011 - -3 Smt. Smriti Ranka 500 0.0023 - 500 0.0011 - -4 Shri Suvrat Ranka 500 0.0023 - 500 0.0011 - -5 Ajaymeru trading & Investment Pvt. Ltd. 6530886 30.0360 - 6530886 13.8531 - (16.18)6 Pride Mercentiles Pvt. Ltd. 5343453 24.5749 - 5343453 11.3343 - (13.24)7 Trishul Traders Pvt. Ltd. - - - 13729065 29.1216 0.53 29.128 Vulvan Traders Pvt. Ltd. - - - 1953333 4.1433 - 4.14
Total 11876339 54.6202 - 27558737 58.4566 0.53 3.84

(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

SN Particulars Date Reason No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares

1 Trishul Traders Pvt. Ltd.At the beginning of the year - - - -Changes during the year 28.03.2017 Allot 13729065 29.12 13729065 29.12At the end of the year 13729065 29.12 13729065 29.12
2 Vulvan Trader Pvt. Ltd.At the beginning of the yearChanges during the year 28.03.2017 Allot 1953333 4.14 1953333 4.14At the end of the year 1953333 4.14 1953333 4.14Note: Issued during the year pursuant to scheme of amalgamation approved by Hon'ble BIFR.

% change in
shareholding
during the
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(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders       (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
SN For each of the Top 10 shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares1 Unit Trust of India - - 1380775 2.93%2 UTI-Opportunities Fund 1000000 4.60% 1000000 2.12%3 Pirth Mercentiles Pvt. Ltd. - - 813333 1.73%4 The New India Assurance Co. Ltd - - 586666 1.24%5 Mahendra Girdharilal - - 584137 1.24%6 General Insurance Corporation of India - - 426666 0.91%7 National Insurance Corporation Ltd - - 360000 0.76%8 Lic Housing Finance Ltd - - 266666 0.57%9 Life Insurance Corporation of India - - 266666 0.57%10 United India Insurance Co. Ltd - - 253333 0.54%Note: During the year Modern Terry Towels Limited has merged with the Company and has alloted shares of the Company to the erstwhile shareholders of MTTLas per the scheme of amalgamation approved by Hon'ble BIFR.
(v) Shareholding of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel:

SN For each of the Directors & Key Managerial Personnel Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares1 Shri Sachin Ranka -Chairman & Managing Director 500 - 500 -2 Shri D.B. Deshpande - Executive Director - - - -3 Shri T.C. Chejara - Non - Executive Director 150 - 150 -4 Shri R.Raniwala - Independent Director - - - -5 Shri S.B. L. Jain - Independent Director - - - -6 Shri P.K. Rao - Independent Director - - - -7 Smt. Meenu Sacheti - Independent Director - - - -8 Shri D.S. Singhvi - Chief Financial Officer - - - -9 Shri Gaurav Goyal - Company Secretary 10 - 12 -& Compliance Officer
V. INDEBTEDNESSIndebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(` in lacs)

Particulars Secured Loans excluding deposits Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial yeari)   Principal Amount 41.70 - - 41.70ii)  Interest due but not paid - - - -iii)  Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 41.70 - - 41.70
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year* Addition* 29.50 - 420.79 450.29* Reduction 17.11 - - 17.11
Net Change 12.39 - 420.79 433.18
Indebtedness at the end of the financial yeari) Principal Amount 54.09 - - 54.09ii) Interest due but not paid - - -iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 54.09 - 420.79 474.88* Transferred from MTTL pursuant to scheme of amalgamation.
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELA. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (`     in lacs)                          Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name Shri Sachin Ranka Shri D.B. Deshpande Shri H.L. Sharama

Designation CMD WTD WTD

1 Gross salary(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) ofthe Income-tax Act, 1961 60.00 61.92 8.40 130.32(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 7.20 7.58 15.66 30.44(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - -2 Stock Option - - - -3 Sweat Equity - - - -4 Commission - - - --  as % of profit - - - --  others, specify - - - -5 Others, please specify - -
Total (A) 67.20 69.50 24.06 160.76
Ceiling as per the Act 269.61

B. Remuneration to other Directors (`     in lacs)
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

No. T.C. Chejara R. Raniwala S.B.L. Jain P.K. Rao Meenu Sacheti

1 Independent Directors-  Fee for attending board committee meetings - 0.35 0.31 - 0.07 0.73-  Commission - - - - - --  Others, please specify - - - - - -
Total (1) - 0.35 0.31 - 0.07 0.73

2 Other Non-Executive Directors-  Fee for attending board committee meetings - - - - - --  Commission - - - - - --  Others, (Professional Fee) 4.00 - - - - 4.00
Total (2) 4.00 - - - - 4.00
Total (B)=(1+2) 4.00 0.35 0.31 - 0.07 4.73
Total Managerial Remuneration -
Overall Ceiling as per the Act 269.61

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD (`     in lacs)

Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial PersonnelNo. Shri D.S. Singhvi Shri Gaurav Goyal Total Amount
CFO Company Secretary1 Gross salary(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)of the Income-tax Act, 1961 12.72 1.95 14.67(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 5.80 1.47 7.27(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -2 Stock Option - - -3 Sweat Equity - - -4 Commission-  as % of profit - - --  others, specify - - -5 Others, please specify - - -

Total 18.52 3.42 21.94
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Annexure C to Boards’ Report
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

S. CSR project Sector in Projects or Programs: Amount outlay Amount spent on the projects Cumulative Amount Spent:
No. or activity which the (1) Local area or other. (Budget) Project or programs. Sub-heads: expenditure up Direct or

identified project (2) Specify the State and District or programs wise (1) Direct expenditure on to the reporting through
 is covered where projects or programs projects or programs.  period implanting agency

was undertaken (2) Overheads
(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)1. Medical relief including Health Care Mumbai (Maharashtra) 10.47 10.47 10.47 Through H.S. Rankamedical camps, general  & Abu Road (Rajasthan) Foundation, Mahaveerhealth care activities etc. International &Modern Swastik sevasansthan2. Prevention, early diagnosis  Health Care Mumbai (Maharashtra) 3.00 3.00 3.00 Through  JASCAPand early treatmentof cancer patients3 Rural Development Rural Danta (Rajasthan) 1.80 1.80 1.80 Through Acharyaincluding Educational Develop- & Udaipur (Rajasthan) Nanesh Samtaprograms at rural areas, ments Vikas Trustdevelopment of  vocationalskills, help of flood victims4. Environment Environment Abu Road (Rajasthan) 11.39 11.39 11.39 Kedia rainwatersustainability and sustainability harvesting andconversation of Mukhyamantri Jalnatural resources swavlamban Abhiyan

Total 26.66 26.66 26.66

VII.  PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of the Brief Description Details of Penalty /Punishment/ Authority (RD/ NCLT/ Appeal made if any

Companies Act Compounding fees imposed COURT) (give details)
A. COMPANYPenaltyPunishment NoneCompounding
B. DIRECTORSPenaltyPunishment NoneCompounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULTPenaltyPunishment NoneCompounding

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview
of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes:The Company had proposed to undertake activities relating to ruraldevelopment including preventive healthcare, safe drinking water,environment sustainability, medical relief, enhancing vocational skillsetc for the Financial Year 2016-17. The CSR policy is available on theCompany’s website. The web link of the same is http://moderninsulators.com/Investors/invpdf/Policy_CSR.pdf.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:S. No. Name of Director Designation Category1. Shri Sachin Ranka Chairman Chariman & ManagingDirector

2. Shri R. Raniwala Member Independent Director3. Shri T.C. Chejara Member Non-Executive Director
3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years:Average Net Profit: Rs 1332.86 Lacs
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (Two percent of the amount as in

item 3 above)The Company is required to spend Rs. 26.66 Lacs.
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:(a) Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 26.66 Lacs.(b)  Amount unspent, if any: Nil(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailedbelow:



17
Insulators Limited

6. We hereby affirm that the CSR Policy as approved by the Board has been implemented and the CSR Committee as well as Board monitors theimplementation of the CSR activities/programs undertaken by the Company in compliance of CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.Date: 29th May, 2017  (Sachin Ranka)Place: Ahmedabad Chairman & Managing Director &
Chairman of CSR Committee

Annexure D to Boards’ Report
Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(1) Ratio of the remuneration of each Director/KMP to the median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for the financial year:Median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for the Financial Year 2016-17 156703Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year 8.25%Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2017 1289
Name of Director & KMP Ratio of Remuneration to median % increase in remuneration in

remuneration of all employees Financial year 2016-17Shri Sachin Ranka 38.30 -Shri D.B. Deshpande 39.50 12.12%Shri D.S. Singhvi 9.86 13.78%Shri Gaurav Goyal 1.88 NANote: (1) The ratio of remuneration to the median remuneration is based on the remuneration paid during the period 1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2017.(2) Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees, other than the managerial personnel in the financial year 2016-17, was11.80% over the previous financial year, which is in line with the industry benchmark and cost of living index. The average salaries ofthe managerial personnel for the same financial year increased by 8.60%.(3) The remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.
Annexure E to Boards’ Report

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO ETC:Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo required to be disclosed under Section 134 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:
(A) Conservation of Energy:

RemarksBeing energy efficient has become the need of the hour.  Having realized itlong back & since then channelized all efforts to conserve and optimizeuse of energy with continuous monitoring through improved operationaltechniques. Some of the measures taken by the company in this directionare as under:i)  Installation of state of the art & energy efficient VFDs on agitators forpower saving. This has added a new dimension in Rheological Qualitycontrol of the all important final slurry, thus improving the Quality ofthe final porcelain.ii) There has been mass scale deployment of highly energy efficient LEDlights & 20W tube lights in Plants , Offices & Streets

S. No. Particulars(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternatesources of energy:(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:
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(B) Technology Absorption:

a) Efforts, in brief made towards technology absorption, adoption and innovation:i. We are almost through with converting all our kiln liners with Ultra low thermal mass Pyroblocks modules. Apart from being highly energyefficient, these modules are, by design, easy for installation & replacements and have reduced down time of kiln operation. Thus, overallfuel efficiency has improved.ii. After kiln the second most energy sensitive operation is that of a huge battery of batch driers. We have started modifying driers by addingenergy efficient fuel burners in the loop, thereby reducing the cost of drying. This exercise is ongoing & so far almost 50% of the driers arealready converted.iii. There has been a strong drive in further reducing fuel consumption by incorporating automation in Air / Fuel ratio control. Further work inthis direction is in full swing.iv. We are progressively converting the manual shaping machines into CNC modes thereby directly improving the product finish , dimensionalcontrol & Drier & Kiln recovery.v. Heavy core dia. Solid core & Critical Hollow insulators are being successfully handled using controlled electrical drying. This hasconsistently improved Drier & Kiln recovery apart from delivering technically sound products.vi. Process optimization to enhance technical performance and recovery of the existing product range.vii. Ball Mill productivity has been improved by single batch charging method to reduce grinding time, without affecting the final slurryproperties.viii.Low temperature maturing Bauxite body & corresponding glaze has been developed for a peak temperature of 1160°C, with improvedtechnical performance. This is milestone towards achieving fuel economy.ix. There has been continuous focus to explore domestic source of china clays & ball clays as potential replacement for costly importedclays.x. All the existing testing machines operations are computerised with efficient data storage & retrieval system. There has been developmentof beam load testing setup for testing of hollow insulators shell.
b) Benefits derived as a result of above efforts:i. Improvement in efficiency & productivity.ii. Improvement in quality & reliability of products.iii. Reduction in firing cycle time & cost saving with increased productivity.iv. Reduction in power cost due to reduced power consumption.v. Reduction in rejections at various stages.vi. Consistent supply of quality clays are ensured.vii. Maintain and improve cost-competitiveness of raw materials.viii.Uninterrupted plant operations at optimum level with desired yield.ix.Entry in new product segment.
c) In case of imported technology (Imported during last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year): Nil

d) Expenditure incurred on R&Di. Capital : ` Nil lacsii. Recurring : ` 391.28 lacsTotal : ` 391.28 lacsTotal R & D expenditure as %age of total turnover : 0.70%
(C) Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:The Company has earned during the period foreign exchange of ` 10114.05 lacs at F.O.B. price against an outgo of ` 1643.25 lacs.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCECorporate Governance is the application of best management practices, compliances of law and adherence to ethical standards to achieve theCompany’s objective of enhancing shareholder value and discharge of social responsibilities.  Adopting high standards gives comfort to all existingand potential stakeholders including government and regulatory authorities, customers, suppliers, bankers, employees and shareholders.Your Company believes in adopting and adhering to the best standards of Corporate Governance. Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governanceenshrines the goal of achieving the highest level of transparency, accountability and equality in all spheres of its operations.Your company is committed towards transparency in all its dealings and places high emphasis on business principles and believes the good CorporateGovernance goes beyond working results and financial priority and is pre-requisite for the attainment of excellent performance.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of Board of DirectorsAs on date, your Company’s Board comprises of 7 Directors, of which 4 are Independent Directors, 1 is Non-Executive Directors and 2 areExecutive Directors. All Independent Directors are free from any business or other relationship that could materially influence their judgment. Thecomposition of the Board is inconformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The Directors are professionalsand have expertise in their respective functional areas.
Name of Director Executive/ Non-Executive/ No. of Equity Directorships in other

Independent Shares held Public Limited
Companies Member ChairmanShri Sachin Ranka Executive/ Promoter 500 1 - 1Shri D.B. Deshpande Executive - - - -Shri H.L. Sharma* Executive 50 1 1 3Shri T.C. Chejara Non-Executive - 1 1 3Shri R.Raniwala Independent - - - -Shri S.B.L. Jain Independent - 2 3 -Shri P.K. Rao Independent - - - -Smt. Meenu Sacheti Independent - - - -* Ceased to be a director w.e.f. 01.10.2016.  There is no inter-se relationship between our board members.

Conduct of Board ProceedingsThe day to day matters concerning the business are conducted by the Executives of the Company under the direction of Executive Directors with theultimate supervision of the Board. The Board holds its meetings at regular intervals to review and discuss the performance of the Company, its futureplans, strategies and other pertinent issues relating to the Company.
Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting (AGM)The Board meets once in every quarter to review the quarterly financial results and other items of the agenda and if necessary, additional meetingsare held as and when required. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR)Regulations, 2015.Details of attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting (AGM) held during the FY 2016-17 are as under:

25th June, 2016 14th Sept., 2016 22nd  Sept., 2016 30th Dec., 2016 14th Feb., 2017 28th Mar., 2017Mr. Sachin Ranka √ √ √ √ √ √ √Mr. D.B. Deshpande - √ Leave of Leave of Leave of √ √Absence Absence AbsenceMr. H. L. Sharma(Till 30.09.2016) √ √ √ √ N.A. N.A. N.A.Mrs. Meenu Sacheti - √ Leave of Leave of Leave of Leave of √Absence Absence Absence AbsenceMr. S.B.L. Jain √ √ √ √ √ √ √Mr. R. Raniwala √ √ √ √ √ √ √Mr. P.K. Rao - Leave of Leave of Leave of Leave of Leave of √Absence Absence Absence Absence AbsenceMr. T. C. Chejara(From 01.10.2016) N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. √ √ √
Meetings of Independent DirectorsA separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company was held on 28th March, 2017, without the presence of Non-Independent Directorsand members of the management, to discuss the matters as required under Schedule IV of the Act and the Listing Regulations. The meeting wasattended by all the Independent Directors.

Membership in Committees of
other Companies

Name of the Directors
Attendance of
AGM held on

22nd Sept., 2016

Date of Board Meeting
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Code of ConductThe Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct (“the Code”) for all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of your Company,which is available on the Company’s website, www.moderninsulators.com.All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. A declaration to that effect signed by theManaging Director is attached, and forms part of this Report.
Familiarization programme for Independent DirectorYour Company conducts introductory familiarization programme, inter alia covering the nature of the industry in which the Company operates,business model of the Company, etc., when a new Independent Director joins the Board of the Company. On an on-going basis, the Directors arefamiliarized with the Company’s business, its operations, strategy, functions, policies and procedures at the Board and Committee meetings.The details of familiarisation programme, imparted to the Independent Directors during the F.Y. 2016-17, have been disclosed on the Company’swebsite, www.moderninsulators.com.
Performance evaluationA formal Evaluation Framework for evaluation of the Board’s performance, performance of its Committees and individual Directors of the Company,including the Chairman of the Board, in terms of the requirement of the Act and the Listing Regulations, is in place. In terms of the EvaluationFramework, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually and the working of itsCommittees. Criteria for evaluation inter alia include providing strategic perspective, Chairmanship of the Board and its Committees, attendanceand preparedness for the meetings, contribution at the meetings and role of the Committees.
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARDThe Board has four Committees namely Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee,and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.
Audit CommitteeYour Company has a qualified and independent Audit Committee. The Committee is governed by a charter which is in line with the regulatoryrequirements mandated by Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015. The Audit Committee acts as a linkbetween the management, the statutory and internal auditors, and the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee is provided with the necessaryassistance and information so as to enable it to carry out its function effectively.
Composition and Attendance during the YearAs on date the Audit Committee comprises of two Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director with Independent Director as Chairmanof the Committee who are financially literate and have accounting or related financial management expertise. The composition of the Audit Committeecomplies with the requirements of the Act and the Listing Regulations.During the year under review, 4 Audit Committee Meetings were held, on 25th June, 2016, 14th September, 2016, 30th December, 2016 and 28thMarch, 2017.The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of the meetings attended by the Members are given below:
Name of the Member Category                                       Number of Meetings

Held AttendedShri R. Raniwala, Chairman Independent 4 4Shri S.B.L. Jain Independent 4 4Shri H.L. Sharma (Till 30.09.2016) Executive 2 2Shri T.C. Chejara (From 01.10.2016) Non-Executive 2 2The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last AGM of the Company held on 22nd September, 2016.
Brief description of terms of reference1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial statement iscorrect, sufficient and credible.2. Recommendation of appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of the auditors.3. Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them.4. Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the board for approval, withparticular reference to:a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section of Section 134 of the Companies Act,2013.b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.5. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval.6. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process.7. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties.



21
Insulators Limited8. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.9. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.10. Review with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internal control systems.11. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of theofficial heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.12. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on.13. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or afailure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board.14. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertainany area of concern.15. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of nonpayment ofdeclared dividends) and creditors.16. To review the Whistle Blower mechanism.17. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or discharging thatfunction) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background etc. of the candidate.18. The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified in section 177(4) of Companies Act,2013 or referred to it by the Board and for this purpose shall have power to obtain professional advice from external sources and have full accessto information contained in the records of the Company.19. The Auditors of a Company and the Key Managerial Personnel shall have a right to be heard in the meetings of the Audit Committee when itconsiders the auditor’s report.

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:1. management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;2. statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by the management;3. management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;4. internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;5. the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor; and6. statement of deviations:a. Quarterly statement of deviation(s), including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of ListingRegulations;b. Annual statement of funds utilized for the purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of Listing Regulations.
Nomination and Remuneration CommitteeThe Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
Composition, Meetings, Attendance during the YearThe Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) comprises of 3 Non-Executive Independent Directors. During the year under review, 3 NRCMeetings were held, on 25th June, 2016, 22nd September, 2016 and 28th March, 2017.The composition of the NRC and the details of the meetings attended by the Members are given below:
Name of the Member Category Number of Meetings

Held AttendedShri R. Raniwala, Chairman Independent 3 3Shri S.B.L. Jain Independent 3 3Shri P.K. Rao Independent 3 1
Terms of ReferenceThe broad terms of reference of the Committee are as follows:1. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laiddown, recommend to the Board for their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance.2. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy,relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.3. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, while formulating the policy ensures that:a. the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to run theCompany successfully;b. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;  andc. remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflectingshort and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals:4. The Chairperson of the said Committee or, in his absence, any other member of the committee authorized by him in this behalf shall attend thegeneral meetings of the company.
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Insulators Limited5. To consider and fix the remuneration package of non-executive and executive Directors including pension rights and any compensation payment.6. All elements of remuneration package of Directors such as benefits, bonus, stock options, pension etc.7. Any other work and policy, related and incidental to the objectives of the committee as per provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder.

Remuneration PolicyThe Company has formulated and adopted Executive Remuneration Policy of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Senior Management ofthe Company and the same is disclosed in the Annual Report.
Remuneration to DirectorsAll decisions relating to the remuneration of the Directors were taken by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the Shareholders’approval on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, wherever necessary.Details of remuneration paid to the Directors for the year under review are as under:  (Rs. in lacs)
Name of the Director Remuneration Sitting FeesShri Sachin Ranka 67.20 -Shri D.B. Deshpande 69.50 -Shri H. L. Sharma (Till 30.09.2016) 24.06 -Shri R. Raniwala - 0.35Shri S.B.L. Jain - 0.31Shri P.K. Rao - -Smt. Meenu Sacheti - 0.07Shri T. C. Chejara (From 01.10.2016) - -

Corporate Social Responsibility CommitteeYour Company has a CSR Committee of the Board of Directors which assists the Board in discharging its social responsibility by way of formulating,monitoring and implementing the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy).
Composition and Attendance during the YearThe CSR Committee comprises of 2 Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director.During the year under review, 2 CSR Committee meetings were held, on 25th June, 2016 and 28th March, 2017.The composition of the CSR Committee and the details of the meetings attended by the Members are given below:
Name of the Member Category                                                  No. of Meetings

Held AttendedShri Sachin Ranka, Chariman Executive 2 2Shri R. Raniwala Independent 2 2Shri H.L. Sharma (till 30.09.2016) Executive 2 1Shri T.C. Chejara (From 01.10.2016) Non-Executive 2 1
Stakeholders’ Relationship CommitteeThe Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 which are given below:The composition of the Committee and the details of the meetings attended by the Members are given below:
Name of the Member Category                                            No. of Meetings

Held AttendedShri R. Raniwala, Chairman Independent 4 4Shri S.B.L. Jain Independent 4 4Shri H.L. Sharma (till 30.09.2016) Executive 2 2Shri T.C. Chejara (From 01.10.2016) Non-Executive 2 2
Terms of reference:1. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall consider and resolve the grievances of all stakeholders and security holders of the Company.2. The Chairperson of the said Committee or, in his absence, any other member of the Committee authorized by him in this behalf shall attend thegeneral meetings of the Company.3. Review all Shareholder’s grievances like non-receipt of annual reports, non-receipt of dividend etc.4. Issue of Duplicate Share Certificates, Transfer of Shares in Physical form & Share Transfer Work.5. Any other work and policy related and incidental to the objectives of the Committee as per provisions of the Act and rules made there under.The Company Secretary also acts as a Secretary to the Committee.
Details of Complaints Received and Resolved
Particulars No. of ComplaintsComplaints pending as on 1st April, 2016 NilComplaints received during the period 1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2017 70Complaints disposed off during the period 1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2017 70Complaints outstanding as on 31st March, 2017 Nil
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Name and Designation of the Compliance OfficerName:  Mr. Gaurav GoyalDesignation: Company SecretaryAddress: A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur - 302 004
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Details of Annual General MeetingsDetails of the Annual General Meetings (AGM) of the Company held in the last 3 years are as follows:
Financial Year/AGM Date Time Venue No. of Special

Resolution(s) Passed2013-14 27th  September, 2014 10.30 A.M. A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, 229th AGM Jaipur – 302004 (Rajasthan)2014-15 22nd September, 2015 11.00 A.M. A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, 430th AGM Jaipur – 302004 (Rajasthan)2015-16 22nd September, 2016 11.00 A.M. A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, 331st AGM Jaipur – 302004 (Rajasthan)2016-17 7th January, 2017 11.00 A.M. A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, 1Court Convened Meeting Jaipur – 302004 (Rajasthan)
Postal Ballot & E-votingThe Company successfully completed the process of obtaining approval of its Members on three resolutions during the year 2016-17. The details ofthese resolutions along with the voting pattern are as follows:- Resolution No. 1Special Resolution for amendment to the object clause of Memorandum of Association of the Company
Category No. of Shares held No. of votes polled No. of votes in favour No. of votes in against No. of Invalid votesPromoter 11876339 11874339 11874339 - -Public 9867161 177450 165700 - 11750
Total 21743500 12051789 12040039 - 11750Resolution No. 2Special Resolution for amendment to liability clause of Memorandum of Association of the Company
Category No. of Shares held No. of votes polled No. of votes in favour No. of votes in against No. of Invalid votesPromoter 11876339 11874339 11874339 - -Public 9867161 177450 165700 - 11750
Total 21743500 12051789 12040039 - 11750Resolution No. 3Special Resolution for adoption of new set of Articles of Association of the Company
Category No. of Shares held No. of votes polled No. of votes in favour No. of votes in against No. of Invalid votesPromoter 11876339 11874339 11874339 - -Public 9867161 179000 167250 - 11750
Total 21743500 12053339 12041589 - 11750

Person who conducted the Postal Ballot exercise:-Mr. B.K. Sharma, Practising Company Secretary, Jaipur was appointed to act as the scrutinizer for conducting the postal ballot and E-voting.There is no special resolution proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.
Procedure for Postal Ballot:i. The Board of Directors, vide resolution dated 30th December, 2016 had appointed Mr. B.K. Sharma as the scrutinizer.ii. The dispatch of the Postal Ballot Notice dated 11th January, 2017 together with Explanatory Statement was completed on 16th January, 2017along with forms and postage prepaid business envelopes to all the shareholders whose name(s) appeared on the Registers of Members/list ofbeneficiaries as on 6th January, 2017.iii. The voting under the Postal Ballot was kept open from 18th January, 2017 to 16th February, 2017 (either physically or through electronic mode).iv. Particulars of Postal Ballot forms received from the Members using the electronic platform of NSDL were entered in a register separatelymaintained for the purpose.v. The Postal Ballot forms were kept under the safe custody of the Scrutinizer in sealed and tamper proof ballot boxes before commencing thescrutiny of such postal ballot forms.vi. All Postal Ballot forms received by the Scrutinizer upto 5 p.m. on 16th February, 2017 had been considered for his scrutiny. Postal Ballot formsreceived after the date had not been considered.vii. On 17th February, 2017, as authorized by the Board, Mr. Gaurav Goyal, Company Secretary announced the results of the Postal Ballot as per theScrutinizer’s Report.
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONa) Annual report containing Audited Annual Accounts, Consolidated Financial Statements, Board’s Report, Management Discussion & Analysis(MD&A) Report, Auditor’s Report and other information are circulated to members and others who are entitled to it.b) Financial Results were not published in newspapers upto September, 2016 quarter however from December, 2016, Company has publishedresults in Financial Chronicle and other newspaper.c) All important information relating to Company and its performance including the financial results and shareholding pattern are displayed on theCompany’s website www.moderninsulators.com.d) The Company has not made quarterly presentations to analysts.e) Disclosures pursuant to various provisions of Listing Regulations, as applicable, are communicated to the BSE Limited, and are displayed bythem on their website.
DISCLOSURES1. During the year under review, no materially significant Related Party Transactions, that may have a potential conflict with the interest of theCompany at large, have been entered into. All contracts/arrangements/ transactions entered into by your Company with its related parties wereon an arm’s-length basis and in the ordinary course of business. A policy on dealing with related party transactions has been uploaded on thewebsite of the Company, www.moderninsulators.com.2. No penalty or strictures are imposed by SEBI or the Stock Exchanges or any Statutory Authority.3. The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 while preparingFinancial Statements.4. There are no pecuniary relationships or transactions of Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company which has potential conflict with theinterests of the Company at large.5. The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board members about the Risk assessment and mitigation plans and periodical reviews toensure that the critical risks are controlled by the executive management.6. The Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of ‘Independence’ as stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013 and theListing Regulations.7. The Company has complied and disclosed all the mandatory corporate governance requirements under Regulation 17 to 27 and sub-regulation(2) of Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations (relating to disclosure on the website of the Company).
DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENT UNDER REGULATION 27 OF LISTING REGULATIONThe status of compliance with discretionary recommendations of the Regulation 27 of the Listing Regulations with Stock Exchanges is providedbelow:1. Shareholders’ Rights: As the quarterly and half yearly financial performance along with significant events are posted on the Company’s website,the same are not being sent to the shareholders.2. Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee.
CEO/CFO CERTIFICATIONThe Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of the ListingRegulations certifying that the financial statements do not contain any materially untrue statement and these statements represent a true and fairview of the Company’s affairs. The said certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report.
GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATON1. Annual General Meeting:Day & Date : Wednesday, 27th September, 2017Time : 4.00 p.m.Venue : A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur-302004 (Registered Office of the Company)2. Financial Calendar:The Company follows the period of 1st April to 31st March, as the Financial Year.First quarterly results : On or before 14th September, 2017Second quarterly / Half yearly results : On or before 14th December, 2017Third quarterly results : On or before 14th Feb, 2018Annual results for the year ending on 31st March, 2018 : On or before 30th May, 2018Annual General Meeting for the year ending on 31st March, 2018 : Sept, 2018
3. Dates of Book Closure:The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 23rd September, 2017 to 27th September, 2017(both days inclusive)
4. Stock Exchanges where Equity Shares are listed and Scrip code:

BSE Limited (BSE)Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400 001Scrip Code: 515008
5. Listing Fees to the Stock ExchangesThe Company has paid listing fees upto financial year 2017-2018 to BSE Limited.
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6. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent:Beetal Financial and Computer Services Private LimitedBeetal House, 3rd Floor, 99,  Madangir, Behind LSCNew Delhi-110062
7. Share Transfer SystemRegistrar and Transfer Agents (the ‘RTA’), on receipt of transfer deed with respective share certificates, scrutinizes the same and verify signaturesof transferors on the transfer deed with specimen signatures registered with the Company. A list of such transfers is prepared and checkedthoroughly and a transfer register is prepared. The transfer register is placed before the Stakeholders Relationship Committee for approval. Sharetransfers are registered and share certificates are returned within the prescribed time provided the documents submitted are valid and completein all respects.
8. Dematerialization of SharesThe Company has set up requisite facilities for dematerialization of its Equity Shares in accordance with the provisions of Depository Act, 1996with National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited. The Company has entered into agreements withboth of the Depositories. The status as on 31st March, 2017 is as under:

Mode No. of Shares %(Percentage)Physical Form 33403427 70.85NSDL 287414 0.61CDSL 13453059 28.54
Total 47143900 100.00
ISIN No. of the Company: INE219W01012

9. Market Price Data: No Trading in Shares of the Company was held in BSE being the trading is suspended at BSE since 2002.
10. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31stMarch, 2017

Sr. No No. of Equity Shares Number of Shares % of Shareholding No. of Shareholders1. 1-5000 8015558 17.01 1336822. 5001-10000 1064728 2.26 13763. 10001-20000 885039 1.86 6114. 20001-30000 401928 0.85 1585. 30000-40000 194508 0.41 556. 40000-50000 218139 0.46 477. 50001-100000 493110 1.05 708. 100001 & Above 35870890 76.10 86
Total 47143900 100.00 136085

11. Category of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2017
Category No. of shares % HoldingPromoter & Promoter Group 27558737 58.46Corporate Bodies 1268015 2.69Mutual Funds 1000821 2.12Banks/Financial Institutions 4154947 8.81FII’s 146772 0.31Individuals including NRI 13014608 27.61
Total 47143900 100.00

12. Reconciliation of Share Capital AuditAs stipulated by the Securities Exchange Board of India, a qualified Practicing Company Secretary has carried out the reconciliation of ShareCapital Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL and CDSL, total issued and listed capital. The audit is carried out every quarterand the report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchanges. The audit confirms that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with theaggregate total number of shares in physical form, shares allotted & advised for demat credit but pending execution and the total number ofdematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.
13. Plant LocationsThe Company’s plants are located at the following addresses:1. Insulators Division : Post Box No. 23, Abu Road, Dist. Sirohi  307026 (Rajasthan)2. Yarn Division : Village: Nana Borsara – 394125, Dist. Surat (Gujarat)3. Terry Towels Division : Village: Nidrad, Taluka : Snand– 382110,   Ahmedabad, Gujarat
14. Address for CorrespondenceThe Company Secretary heads the Secretarial Department of the Company. In case of any problem/query, shareholders can contact at registeredoffice of the Company at:A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur-302004.Phone: 91-141-4113645  Email: Compliance@moderninsulators.com
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CODE OF CONDUCT
DECLARATIONAs provided under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board ofDirectors and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Board of Directors and Senior Managementfor the year ended 31st March, 2017.

Sachin RankaPlace : Ahmedabad Chairman & Managing DirectorDate : 29th May, 2017 DIN: 00335534
CEO/CFO CERTIFICATIONThe Board of DirectorsModern Insulators LimitedWe certify that:a. We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement of Modern Insulators Limited for the year 31st March, 2017, and that to thebest of our knowledge and belief:i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; andii these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing accounting standards,applicable laws and regulations.b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal orviolative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness ofthe internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficienciesin the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify the deficiencies.d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:i. significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;ii. significant changes in the accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; andiii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee havinga significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For Modern Insulators LimitedPlace : Ahmedabad D.S. Singhvi D.B. DeshpandeDate : 29th May, 2017 Chief Financial Officer Executive DirectorDIN: 06463412
CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF MODERN INSULATORS LIMITEDWe have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Modern Insulators Limited for the year ended on March 31, 2017,as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBIRegulations”), pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the said Company with Stock Exchanges.The compliance of the condition of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to procedures andimplementations thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit noran expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations made by the Directors and theManagement, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as mentioned in Corporate GovernanceReport.We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which theManagement has conducted the affairs of the Company.For Kasliwal Maheshwari & AssociatesPracticing Company SecretariesRajat KasliwalPartnerMembership No. 44052Place : JaipurDate : 29th May, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTToThe Members of
Modern Insulators Limited
Report on the Financial StatementsWe have audited the accompanying financial statements of Modern
Insulators Limited ("the Company"), which comprise of the BalanceSheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash FlowStatement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accountingpolicies and other explanatory information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial StatementsThe Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated inSection 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect tothe preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair viewof the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of theCompany in accordance with the accounting principles generally acceptedin India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accountingrecords in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding theassets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and otherirregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; anddesign, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal controls,that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completenessof the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free frommaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's ResponsibilityOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statementsbased on our audit.We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting andauditing standards and matters which are required to be included in theaudit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditingspecified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require thatwe comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit toobtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arefree from material misstatement.An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboutthe amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The proceduresselected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whetherdue to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditorconsiders internal control relevant to the Company's preparation of thefinancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design auditprocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includesevaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and thereasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company'sDirectors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financialstatements.We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient andappropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on thefinancial statements.
Basis for Qualified Opinion
(a) Balances of Trade Payables & Trade Receivables are subject to

reconciliations/confirmations (Refer Note No.8.1 & 15.2).

(b) The company has not received information from vendors regarding
their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006 and hence disclosure relating to amounts
unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable under
this Act have been considered as dues of trade payables other than
micro and small enterprises.(Refer Note No.8.2).

OpinionIn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to theexplanations given to us, except for the effect of the matters described in"Basis for Qualified opinion" paragraph above, the aforesaid financialstatements, give the information required by the Act in the manner sorequired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accountingprinciples generally accepted in India:(a)   In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Companyas at March 31, 2017;(b)   In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for theyear ended on that date; and(c)   In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the yearended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("theOrder") issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 and on the basis of such checksof the books and records of the company as we considered appropriateand according to the information and explanations given to us, wegive in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified inparagraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:i. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanationswhich to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary forthe purposes of our audit.ii. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law havebeen kept by the Company so far as appears from our examinationof those books.iii. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash FlowStatement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with thebooks of account.iv. Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis forQualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, the Balance Sheet,Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement complywith the accounting standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.v. On the basis of written representations received from the directorsas on March 31, 2017, and taken on record by the Board ofDirectors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2017, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.vi. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controlsover financial reporting of the company and the operatingeffectiveness of such controls, refer to our report in Annexure Bandvii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor'sReport in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit andAuditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us:
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Referred to in the report of even date of the Auditors to members of
MODERN INSULATORS LIMITED.(i) (a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particularsincluding quantitative details and situation of fixed assets exceptfurniture & fixtures for which detailed records are not maintained.(b) As per the information and explanations given to us, most of thefixed assets have been physically verified during the year bymanagement in accordance with a phased programme ofverification at reasonable intervals. According to the informationand explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticedon such verification.(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and onthe basis of our examination of the records of the Company, thetitle deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of theCompany or its division.(ii) As per the information and explanations given to us, the inventorieshave been physically verified during the year by the management.  Inour opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and no materialdiscrepancies were noticed on physical verification during the year.(iii) The Company had given unsecured loan to a Company covered undersection 189 of the Companies Act in view of proposed amalgamationawaiting approval from National Company Law Tribunal. Since theamount paid is in connection to proposed amalgamation scheme, noterms have been specified for repayment of loan and interest. In viewof likely advantage to the Company on such amalgamation, grantingof such loan is not prejudicial to the interest of the Company (ReferNote No. 29).(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Companyhas complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of theCompanies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees andsecurity.(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Companyhas not accepted any deposits from the public during the year.(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the centralgovernment has prescribed maintenance of cost records under section148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the products of the company.We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by theCompany and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribedaccounts and records have been made and maintained. We had not,however carried out detailed examination of the same to determinewhether they are accurate and complete.(vii) (a)According to the records of the company, the company isgenerally regular in depositing with appropriate authoritiesundisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees'

state insurance, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty ofexcise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable toit and no undisputed statutory dues as noted above is outstandingfor a period of more than six months from the date it becamepayable.(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and therecords of the Company examined by us, the particulars of dues ofsales tax,  value added tax, duty of excise and Service Tax etc., asapplicable, as at 31st March 2017 which have not been depositedon account of dispute, are as follows:
Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where
Statute dues (` in lacs) which the the dispute is

amount pending
relatesCentral Excise Excise Duty 98.57 Various years Central ExciseAct 1944 & from and Service TaxService Tax 2005-06 to Appellate2010-11 Tribunal, Delhi55.32 2012-13 Commissioner& Central Excise2013-14 (Appeals), Jaipur258.84 2004-05 Departmentalto authorities at2016-17 various places(viii) Based on our audit and as per the information and explanations givenby the management, the company has not defaulted in repayment ofdues to bank during the year. The company does not have any duesto debenture holders and loans from financial institutions/government.(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer orfurther public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans duringthe year.(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of theCompany, carried out in accordance with the generally acceptedauditing practices in India and according to the information andexplanations given to us, we have neither come across any instanceof material fraud by the Company or any fraud on the company bythe officers or employees noticed or reported during the year, nor wehave been informed of any such case by the Management.(xi) The managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordancewith the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.(xii) This clause of the CARO, 2016 is not applicable to the Company asthe company is not a Nidhi Company.

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigationson its financial position in its financial statements.b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts includingderivative contracts for which there were any materialforeseeable losses.c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferredto the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.d. The company has provided requisite disclosures in financialstatements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified BankNotes (SBNs) during the period from 8th November, 2016 to

30th December, 2016. Based on audit procedures and relyingon the management representation, the disclosures are inaccordance with the books of account maintained by thecompany and as provided to us by the management. (ReferNote No.37)   For B.L. Verma & Co.Chartered Accountants(Firm Regn. No.001064C)            (B.L. Verma)Place: Jaipur PartnerDate: 29th May, 2017 Membership No.010900
ANNEXURE A FORMING PART OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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Referred to in the report of even date of the Auditors to members of
MODERN INSULATORS LIMITED
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ofMODERN INSULATORS LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2017in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Companyfor the year ended on that date.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial ControlsThe Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaininginternal financial controls based on the internal control over financialreporting criteria established by the Company considering the essentialcomponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit ofInternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Instituteof Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controlsthat were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conductof its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguardingof its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracyand completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation ofreliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors' ResponsibilityOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internalfinancial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conductedour audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of InternalFinancial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") andthe Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribedunder section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicableto an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit ofInternal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require thatwe comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit toobtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financialcontrols over financial reporting were established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboutthe adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reportingand their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controlsover financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internalfinancial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materialweakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operatingeffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The proceduresselected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dueto fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on theCompany's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReportingA company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a processdesigned to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability offinancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for externalpurposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting includes thosepolicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions anddispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurancethat transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financialstatements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only inaccordance with authorizations of management and directors of thecompany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention ortimely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of thecompany's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
ReportingBecause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls overfinancial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or impropermanagement override of controls, material misstatements due to error orfraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation ofthe internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods aresubject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reportingmay become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degreeof compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
OpinionIn our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequateinternal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internalfinancial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as atMarch 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteriaestablished by the Company considering the essential components of internalcontrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controlsover Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountantsof India.  For B.L. VERMA & CO.Chartered Accountants(Firm Regn. No.001064C)

(B.L. Verma)Place: Jaipur PartnerDate: 29th May, 2017 Membership No.010900

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, alltransactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the detailsof such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statementsetc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, thecompany has not made any preferential allotment or private placementof shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the yearunder review.(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, thecompany has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors

or persons connected with them and therefore this clause is notapplicable.(xvi) This clause of the CARO, 2016 is not applicable to the Company asthe company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA ofthe Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.  For B.L. VERMA & CO.Chartered Accountants(Firm Regn. No.001064C)
(B.L. Verma)Place: Jaipur PartnerDate: 29th May, 2017 Membership No.010900

ANNEXURE B FORMING PART OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2017

(`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)

Particulars Note No. As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ FundShare Capital 1 4714.39 2174.35Reserves & Surplus 2 21377.92 24302.86

26092.31 26477.21
Non-Current LiabilitiesLong-term borrowings 3 37.20 24.86Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 4 1161.94 1454.27Other long term liabilities 5 - 233.93Long term provisions 6 1536.92 1214.06

2736.06 2927.12
Current LiabilitiesShort term borrowings 7 7277.67 5904.60Trade payables 8Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -  -Total outstanding dues of  creditors other than micro enterprises andsmall enterprises 3473.93 2624.04Other current liabilities 9 3044.98 2109.07Short-term provisions 6 327.60 180.63

14124.18 10818.34
Total 42952.55 40222.67

ASSETS
Non Current AssetsProperty, Plant & EquipmentTangible assets 10 16034.64 13456.78Intangible assets 10 14.43         13.10Capital work-in-progress  1.07 204.26

16050.14 13674.14Non current investments 11 112.81 117.11Long term loans and advances 12 2303.06 8118.97
18466.01 21910.22

Current assetsCurrent investments 13 1305.27 1888.34Inventories 14 8427.67 6302.19Trade receivables 15 10997.91 7708.84Cash and bank balances 16 637.77 452.28Short term loans and advances 12 2767.28 1674.53Other current assets 17 350.64 286.27
24486.54 18312.45

Total 42952.55 40222.67
Significant Accounting Policies
Other Notes on Financial Statement 26 to 38As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the BoardFor B.L. VERMA & CO.Chartered Accountants(FRN No. 001064C)
(B.L. VERMA)Partner(Membership No. 10900)Place : JaipurDate : 29th May, 2017

Sachin Ranka – Chairman & Managing Director (DIN : 00335534)S.B.L. Jain – Independent Director (DIN : 00002582)R. Raniwala – Independent Director (DIN : 00506419)T.C. Chejara – Non-Executive Director (DIN : 07619881)D.S. Singhvi – Chief Financial OfficerGaurav Goyal – Company SecretaryPlace : Ahmedabad
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(`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)

Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

INCOME:Revenue from Operations 18 51417.00 46101.37Other Income 19 585.16 649.51
Total Revenue 52002.16 46750.88
EXPENSES:Cost of materials consumed 20 19597.57 16987.93Changes in inventories of finished goods &stock in Process 21 (620.77)        822.78Employee benefits expense 22 5742.25 4712.17Finance cost 23 1238.37 1277.82Depreciation and amortization expense 10 992.94        825.40Other expenses 24 22859.01 19417.98
Total Expenses 49809.37 44044.08
Profit before exceptional items & tax 2192.79 2706.80
Exceptional items 25 503.34 456.37
Profit before tax 2696.13 3163.17
Tax Expense:Deferred tax (292.33)        242.57

(292.33)        242.57
Profit for the year 2988.46 2920.60
Earning per equity share (`)Basic & Diluted 34 6.34 13.43
Significant Accounting Policies

Other Notes on Financial Statement 26 to 38

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the BoardFor B.L. VERMA & CO.Chartered Accountants(FRN No. 001064C)
(B.L. VERMA)Partner(Membership No. 10900)Place : JaipurDate : 29th May, 2017

Sachin Ranka – Chairman & Managing Director (DIN : 00335534)S.B.L. Jain – Independent Director (DIN : 00002582)R. Raniwala – Independent Director (DIN : 00506419)T.C. Chejara – Non-Executive Director (DIN : 07619881)D.S. Singhvi – Chief Financial OfficerGaurav Goyal – Company SecretaryPlace : Ahmedabad
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
i) Basis of preparation of financial statementsa) The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention andin accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India, theapplicable accounting standards and as per relevant provisions of theCompanies Act, 2013.b) Income & expenditure are recognised and accounted for on accrual basis.
ii) Use of EstimatesThe preparation of the financial statements requires estimates and assumptions tobe made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date offinancial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during thereporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognisedin the period in which the results are known/materialised.
iii) Property, Plant & Equipmenta) Property, Plant & Equipment (including intangible assets) are stated at costless depreciation.b) Direct expenses as well as clearly identifiable indirect expenses, incurred onproject during the period of construction are capitalised to the respective assets.c) CENVAT credit and other recoverable taxes on capital goods are accountedfor by reducing the cost of capital goods.
iv) DepreciationDepreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided as follows:(a) Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on straight linemethod over the estimated useful life of the assets.(b) Software is amortised over a period of 3 years.(c) Effective from 1st April, 2014 the company depreciates its Property, Plant &Equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in schedule II of theAct.(d) No amount has been written off from leasehold land. The same will be chargedto the Profit & Loss Account only in the year in which the respective leaseperiod expires.
v) InvestmentsLong Term Investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value ofLong term Investments is made only if such decline is other than temporary.
vi) Inventories(a) Raw materials, Stores & spares and stock in process are valued at cost.(b) Finished Stock is valued at lower of cost or estimated net realisable value. (c) Waste is valued at estimated net realisable value.Cost of raw materials & stores is computed on weighted average basis. Finishedgoods and stock in process include cost of conversion and other costs incurredin bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The netrealisable value of leftover stock out of the products manufactured as percustomers' specifications are estimated at nominal value.
vii) Revenue Recognitiona) Sale of goods is recognised on the basis of despatch. Sales is shown inclusiveof excise duty.b) Claims of customers & others are accounted for as and when settled.
viii) Excise Duty/Cenvat(a) Excise duty is accounted for on the basis of payments made in respect ofgoods cleared and provision made for goods lying in bonded warehouse.(b) The Cenvat credit in respect of excise duty is utilised for payment of exciseduty on goods despatched. The unutilised Cenvat credit is carried forward inthe books.
ix) Borrowing costBorrowing costs which are attributable to acquisition or construction of qualifyingassets are capitalised as part of cost of such assets.  A qualifying asset is one whichnecessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use.  All otherborrowing costs are charged to revenue.
x) Employee Benefits:(a) Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscountedamount in the profit and loss account of the year in which the related serviceis rendered.

(b) Post employment and other long term employee benefits are recognized as anexpense in the profit and loss account for the year in which the employee hasrendered services. The expense is recognised at the present value of the amountpayable determined using actuarial valuation techniques. Actuarial gains andlosses in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are chargedto the profit and loss account.
xi) Foreign Currency TransactionsTransactions in foreign currency are recorded on the basis of exchange ratesprevailing on the date of their occurrence. Foreign currency assets and liabilitiesare converted into rupee equivalent at the exchange rates prevailing on the BalanceSheet date and exchange difference arising therefrom is charged to the revenue.
xii) Prior year adjustmentsIncome and expenditure pertaining to prior period are accounted for under respectiveheads of accounts in profit and loss account. Effect of such amount is disclosed innotes.
xiii) Research and DevelopmentRevenue expenditure on Research and Development is charged as expenses in theyear in which they are incurred. Capital expenditure is included in Property, Plant& Equipment and depreciation is provided at the respective applicable rates.xiv) Liability for import duty, if any, on export obligation yet to be completed underEPCG Scheme is accounted for on expiry of obligation period / extension thereof.
xv) TaxationDeferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance sheetdate between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts forfinancial reporting purposes.
xvi) Impairment of AssetsAn asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverablevalue. An impairment loss is charged to statement of profit & loss in the year inwhich an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prioraccounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates ofrecoverable amount.
xvii)Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent AssetsProvisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognisedwhen there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable thatthere will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised butare disclosed in the notes to the accounts. Contingent Assets are neither recognisednor disclosed in the financial statements.
xviii) Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise, are consistent with

generally accepted accounting principles.
xix) Amalgamation of Modern Terry Towels LimitedThe Hon'ble Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) vide itsorder dated 28th July, 2016 has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of ModernTerry Towels Limited (MTTL) a leading manufacturer of terry towels with ModernInsulators Limited. MTTL has been amalgamated with the Company on 15thSeptember, 2016 being the date on which certified true copy of the BIFR orderwas filed with the Registrar of Companies with effect from the appointed date01.01.2008.All the assets and liabilities have been accounted for in the books of account of theCompany at the value appearing in the books of account of MTTL under the "Poolingof Interest" method as prescribed by Accounting Standard- 14 on "Accounting forAmalgamations.In terms of the Scheme, the Company has issued 25400400 Equity Shares of` 10/- each fully paid up to the shareholders of the erstwhile MTTL in the ratio of2 Equity Shares of ̀  10/- each fully paid-up against 3 Equity Shares of ̀  10/- eachfully paid up of MTTL held by them. As a result, Issued and Paid-up Equity ShareCapital of the Company has increased by ` 2540.04 lacs to ` 4714.39 lacs.Difference between Share Capital of MTTL of ` 3810.06 lacs and EquityShare Capital issued by the Company of ` 2540.04 lacs to MTTL shareholdersamounting to ` 1270.02 lacs has been credited to Profit & Loss account of theCompany.In view of amalgamation of MTTL with the Company effected during the year,the figures for the current year are not comparable with those of the previousyear.
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NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2017
1. SHARE CAPITAL (`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

AUTHORISED9,00,00,000 (Previous Year 2,50,00,000) Equity shares of `  10/- each 9000.00 2500.00 5,00,000 (Previous Year 5,00,000) Preference shares of `  100/- each 500.00 500.00
9500.00 3000.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP4,71,43,900 (Previous Year 2,17,43,500) Equity shares of `10/- each fully paid-up 4714.39 2174.351.1 The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of  ` 10/-.Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one voteper share.1.2 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the total number of shares
As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016

Name of the Share holder No. of Shares % Holding No. of Shares % HoldingTrishul Traders Pvt. Ltd. 13729065 29.12 - -Ajaymeru Trading & Investments Pvt.Ltd 6530886 13.85 6530886 30.04Pride Mercantiles Pvt.Ltd 5343453 11.33 5343453 24.571.3 Reconciliation of Number of SharesEquity shares at the beginning of the year 21743500 21743500Issued during the year to the shareholders of Modern Terry Towels 25400400 -Limited (MTTL) pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation(Refer note no. xix of Significant Accounting Policies)Equity shares at the end of the year 47143900 217435001.4 Aggregate Number of Equity Shares allotted as fully paid during 25400400                -the period of five years immediately preceeding the reporting datewithout payment being received in cash
2. RESERVES AND SURPLUS (`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Capital ReserveAs per last balance sheet 25.00 25.00Add : Transferred from MTTL pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation 30.85 -
55.85 25.00

Securities Premium AccountAs per last balance sheet  -        -Transferred from MTTL pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation 2911.45 -
2911.45 -

Statement of Profit & LossAs per last balance sheet 24277.86 21357.26Add : Transferred from MTTL pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation (10125.72) -Add: Profit for the year 2988.46 2920.60Add: Gain on extinguishment of share capital of MTTL and issuance of shares of MIL 1270.02        -Surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss 18410.62 24277.86
Total 21377.92 24302.86

3. LONG TERM BORROWINGS (`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)
As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Non current Current* Non current Current*

SecuredTerm loans from bank 37.20 16.89 24.86 16.84
UnsecuredPublic Fixed Deposits - 420.79 - -

37.20 437.68 24.86 16.84*Considered in other current liabilities (Note No.9).3.1 Term loans from bank are secured against hypothecation of the specific vehicles.3.2 Term loans  from bank (for vehicles) are  repayable as per various payment schedules. Last instalment due in November-2021. Rate of Interest 9.65% to9.90% p.a. (Previous year 10.40% to 10.65% p.a.)3.3 Public Fixed Deposits does not carry any interest pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation approved by Hon’ble Board for Industrial and FinancialReconstruction.
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4. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) (`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)
As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016
a)  Deferred Tax LiabilityDepreciation 2186.67 2144.78
b)  Deferred Tax AssetProvisions allowable for Tax purpose on payment basis 738.97 670.44Unabsorbed Depreciation 194.91 -Others (Provision for doubtful debts) 90.85 20.07

1024.73 690.51
Net Deferred Tax Liability 1161.94 1454.27
5. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES (`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016Entry tax payable - 198.06Interest on Entry tax Payable         -               35.87

Total - 233.93
6. PROVISIONS (`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Long term Short term Long term Short term
Provisions for employee benefitsFor Gratuity 1273.63 166.16 1005.25 97.71For unavailed leaves 263.29 66.72 208.81 54.81

1536.92 232.88 1214.06 152.52
Other provisionsFor excise duty on closing finished stock - 94.72              - 28.11

Total 1536.92 327.60 1214.06 180.63
7. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS (`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

SecuredBank borrowings for working capital 7277.67 5904.607.1 Borrowings for working capital  are secured by hypothecation of  stocks, book debts and first charge on fixed assets of Insulator Division and are personallyguaranteed by one of the directors.
8. TRADE PAYABLE (`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Trade payableTotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -Total outstnading dues of creditores other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3473.93 2624.04
3473.93 2624.048.1 Balances of trade payables are subject to reconciliations/confirmations.8.2 The Company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 andhence disclosure relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable under this Act have been considered as dues of creditorsother than micro and small enterprises.

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)
As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note No.3) 437.68 16.84Entry Tax Payable 210.54                188.16Statutory dues 154.68 177.74Payable towards capital goods 86.51 80.91Advance received from customers 478.19 392.52Sundry deposits 142.15 115.39Other payable* 1535.23 1137.51
Total 3044.98 2109.07* Includes employees dues,interest on entry tax and liabilities for expenses etc.
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(` in lacs)For the year ended March 31, 2016
Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

     Description As at Additions on Additions Deductions As at  As at Additions on For the Deductions As at As at
01.04.2015 Amalgamation 31.03.2016 01.04.2015 Amalgamation  year 31.03.2016 31.03.2016

of  MTTL of  MTTL

I. TANGIBLE ASSETS:    Land 1045.18  -  -  - 1045.18  -  -  -  -  - 1045.18    Building 3973.01  - 125.11  - 4098.12 1305.63  - 140.79  - 1446.42 2651.70    Plant & Machinery 19190.37  - 252.24  - 19442.61 9398.18  - 613.94  - 10012.12 9430.49    Furniture & Fixtures 256.33  - 27.68 2.59 281.42 150.78  - 19.53 0.63 169.68 111.74    Office Equipments 191.92  - 16.57 1.56 206.93 161.72  - 13.49 1.56 173.65 33.28    Vehicles 242.63  - 52.42 0.50 294.55 82.22  - 28.11 0.17 110.16 184.39
Total 24899.44  - 474.02 4.65 25368.81 11098.53  - 815.86 2.36 11912.03 13456.78

II. INTANGIBLE ASSETS:      Computer Software 89.61  -  5.70  - 95.31 72.67  - 9.54 - 82.21 13.10      Technical know-how  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
TOTAL 24989.05 479.72 4.65 25464.12 11171.20  - 825.40 2.36 11994.24 13469.88

10. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Gross Block Depreciation Net Block     Description As at Additions on Additions Deductions As at  As at Additions on For the Deductions As at As at

01.04.2016 Amalgamation 31.03.2017 01.04.2016 Amalgamation year 31.03.2017 31.03.2017
of  MTTL of  MTTL

I. TANGIBLE ASSETS:Land 1045.18 151.69  -  - 1196.87  -  -  -  -  - 1196.87Building 4098.12 2791.17 357.07  - 7246.36 1446.42 1673.46 243.49  - 3363.37 3882.99Plant & Machinery 19442.61 18795.10 659.19  - 38896.90 10012.12 17665.31 655.69  - 28333.12 10563.78Furniture & Fixtures 281.42 111.50 32.26 1.87 423.31 169.68 100.09 20.86 1.36  289.27 134.04Office Equipments 206.93 81.29 32.92 1.82 319.32 173.65 75.32 16.43 1.81  263.59 55.73Vehicles 294.55 14.44 66.01 19.08 355.92 110.16 6.54 49.56 11.57  154.69 201.23
Total 25368.81 21945.19 1147.45 22.77 48438.68 11912.03 19520.72 986.03 14.74 32404.04 16034.64

II. INTANGIBLE ASSETS:Computer Software 95.31  -  8.24  - 103.55 82.21  - 6.91  -  89.12 14.43Technical know-how  - 99.68  -  - 99.68  - 99.68  -  99.68  -
TOTAL 25464.12 22044.87 1155.69 22.77 48641.91 11994.24 19620.40 992.94 14.74 32592.84 16049.07

11. NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (` in lacs)
As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (AT COST)

Trade Investments(Unquoted)

a. Investment in Govt. securitiesNational Saving Certificates 0.01 0.01(Deposited with Govt. department)
b. Investment in shares of subsidiary companyMotile Power Trade Private Ltd. - 4.30Nil (Previous year  43000 Equity shares of ` 10/- each, fully paid up)
c. Investment in shares of other company

VS Lignite Power Pvt. Ltd.*385186 Class ‘A’- Equity shares of ` 10/- each, fully paid up; 38.52 38.52(Previous year 385186 Class ‘A’- Equity shares of ` 10/- each, fully paid up)742814 Class ‘A’- 0.01% Cumulative & RedeemablePreference shares of ` 10/- each, fully paid up; 74.28 74.28(Previous year 742814 Class ‘A’- 0.01% Cumulative & RedeemablePreference shares of ` 10/- each, fully paid up)*Lying with said company under lien.
Total 112.81 117.11
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12. LOANS AND ADVANCES (` in lacs)
As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Long term Short term Long term Short termLoans and advances to related party (Refer Note No.29) 1457.00                 - 5982.16                -Loans to Subsidiary company (Refer Note No.30) -                 - 1300.00                -Capital advances 304.13                 - 326.65                -Income Tax advance - 456.01                 - 456.01Tax deducted at Source  - 359.39                 - 300.11Balance with government Authorities  - 477.39                 - 210.61Prepaid expenses - 71.29                 - 65.38Loans to employees - 66.74                 - 72.72Advance to suppliers  - 738.28                 - 399.57Deposits 541.93 558.14 510.16 150.84Others  - 40.04                 - 19.29

Total 2303.06 2767.28 8118.97 1674.53
13. CURRENT INVESTMENTS (` in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Non-trade Investments (Quoted)

a. Birla Sun Life Floating Rate Long Term Growth 1105.27 1688.34600479.28 Units (Previous Year 972637.061 Units)
b. Birla Sun Life Balance 95’ Found - Growth 150.00 150.0027755.109 Units (Previous Year 27755.109 Units)
c. Birla Sun Life Balance 95’ Found - Growth DIR 50.00 50.008709.587 Units (Previous Year 8709.587 Units)

Total 1305.27 1888.3413.1 - Market Value of Investment ` 1445.07 Lacs ( Previous Year  ` 1973.09 Lacs)
14. INVENTORIES (` in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016Raw Materials (In Transit ` 160.31 lacs; Previous Year ` 255.93 lacs) 1532.39 1489.12Stocks in process 2388.33 2333.98Finished stock 3556.44 1863.56Stores & spares (In Transit ` 62.14 lacs; Previous Year ` 15.63 lacs) 950.51 615.53

Total 8427.67 6302.19
15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (` in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Trade Receivables (Unsecured)Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for paymentConsidered good 533.39 520.73Considered doubtful 267.28 59.05
800.67 579.78Less : Provision for doubtful debts 267.28 59.05
533.39 520.73Others (Considered Good) 10464.52 7188.11

Total 10997.91 7708.8415.1 Includes ` 36.66 lacs (Previous year ` 1.30 lacs) under litigation for which adequate provision has been made.15.2 Balances of trade receivables are subject to reconciliations/confirmations.
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16. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (` in lacs)
As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Cash and Cash equivalentsCash on Hand 5.49 9.64Balances with Banks 405.60 210.74
Other Bank BalancesFixed Deposit with banks 226.68 231.90

Total 637.77 452.2816.1 Fixed  deposits with  banks include  deposits of ` 21.35 lacs (Previous year ` 36.86 lacs) with original maturity of more than 12 months.16.2 Fixed  deposits  with banks  against  margin  ` 223.78 lacs (Previous year ` 210.61 lacs) are held to secure the company’s non- fund  based limits availedfrom the banks.
17. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (` in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016Export benefits & insurance claims receivable 286.76 216.34Accrued interest 63.88 69.93

Total 350.64 286.27
18. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (` in lacs)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016Sale of Products 55378.92 50349.96Sale of Services 8.41 -Other operating revenues 501.52 335.82

55888.85 50685.78Less : Excise duty 4471.85 4584.41
Total 51417.00 46101.3718.1 :Particulars of sale of productsInsulators & Metal fittings 36603.40 34754.30Yarn & Waste 14444.63 15595.66Terry Towels & Fabric 4330.89 -
Total 55378.92 50349.9618.2 :Particulars of sale of servicesJob work Income 8.41 -
Total 8.41 -18.3 :Particulars of other operating revenuesExport Incentive 492.21 335.82Scrap Sales 9.31 -
Total 501.52 335.82

19. OTHER INCOME (` in lacs)
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016Liabilities & sundry balances written back (net) 45.82 35.36Interest Income 220.50 133.67Foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 72.93 181.98Miscellaneous Income (including dividend) 245.24 298.43Profit / (Loss) on sale of Fixed Assets (net) 0.67 0.07

Total 585.16 649.51
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20. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED (` in lacs)
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

%  of % of
(`  in lacs) consumption (` in lacs)  consumptionImported 1562.99 7.98 1384.31 8.15Indigenous 18034.58 92.02 15603.62 91.85

Total 19597.57 100.00 16987.93 100.00(` in lacs)
Year ended Year ended20.1 Details of Materials Consumed 31.03.2017 31.03.2016Clays 1657.16 1599.20Calcined Alumina 3005.85 2694.83Metal Fittings 2723.70 2714.33Polyester Chips 8417.21 8928.05Spin Finish Oil 336.66 330.80Cotton 1193.08 -Fabric 446.18 -Yarn 693.58 -Dyes & Chemical 482.17 -Others 641.98 720.72

Total 19597.57 16987.93
21. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & STOCK IN PROCESS (` in lacs)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016Inventories at the beginning of the yearFinished goods 1863.56 2302.55Stock in process 2333.98 2717.77

4197.54 5020.32Add: Stock transferred from MTTL pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation 1126.46 -
5324.00 5020.32Less: Inventories at the end of the yearFinished goods 3556.44 1863.56Stock in process 2388.33 2333.98
5944.77 4197.54

Total (620.77)          822.78
22. EMPLOYEES BENEFITS EXPENSE (` in lacs)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016Salaries,Gratuity,Wages, Bonus and other allowances 5207.67 4293.71Contribution to Provident & other Funds 453.49 356.75Staff & Labour Welfare 81.09 61.71

Total 5742.25 4712.1722.1 Disclosure in respect of employee benefits as per Accounting Standard 15 is given below:-
Assumptions Year ended Year ended

31.03.2017 31.03.2016- Discount rate 7.73%, 7.44% & 7.31% 8.00% & 7.96%- Expected rate of return on assets - -- Expected rate of future salary increase 5.50% & 6.50% 5.50%
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Leave Leave
Gratuity Encashment Gratuity Encashment

Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded UnfundedChange in present value of obligationsPresent value of obligations as at the beginning of the  year 1102.96 263.62 938.18 222.17Add: transferred from MTT pursuant to scheme of amalgamation 69.79 28.93 - -Interest cost 93.28 23.14 72.72 17.23Current service cost 109.02 53.42 84.26 44.79Past service cost  -                  -                 - -Benefits paid (39.45) (73.37) (40.06) (30.98)Actuarial loss on Obligations 104.19 34.27 47.86 10.41Present value of obligations as at the close of the year 1439.79 330.01 1102.96 263.62Change in fair value of plan assets Not applicable Not applicableLiability recognized in the Balance SheetPresent value of obligations as at the end of the year 1439.79 330.01 1102.96 263.62Fair value of plan assets as at the close of the year - - - -Funded status/difference (1439.79)         (330.01)       (1102.96)        (263.62)Unrecognized Actuarial (Gain)/Loss - - - -Net Assets/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet (1439.79)         (330.01)       (1102.96)        (263.62)Expenses recognized in statement of Profit and LossCurrent service cost 109.02 53.42 84.26 44.79Past service cost  -                  -                 -  -Interest cost 93.28 23.14 72.72 17.23Expected return on plan assets  -                  - - -Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognized during the year 104.19 34.27 47.86 10.41Total Expense recognized in statement of Profit and Loss 306.49 110.83 204.84 72.43Movement in liability recognised in the balance sheetOpening net liability 1102.96 263.62 938.18 222.17Add: transferred from MTT pursuant to scheme of amalgamation 69.79 28.93 - -Expenses as above 306.49 110.83 204.84 72.43Benefits Paid (39.45)           (73.37)         (40.06)          (30.98)Actual return on plan assets -                  -                 -                 -Acquisition adjustments  -                  -                 -                 -Closing net Liability 1439.79 330.01 1102.96 263.62Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:Present Value of Obligation - Gratuity 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2014 31.03.2013Defined Benefit Obligation 1439.79           1102.96         938.18 804.99        695.16Plan Assets  -                  -                 -                 -                -Unrecognised past service Cost - - - - -Deficit (1439.79)         (1102.96)       (938.18)        (804.99)      (695.16)Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (36.56)           (47.33)         (31.63)          (33.84)          43.27Experience adjustments on plan assets  -                  -                 -                 -                -The above disclosures are based on information certified by the independent actuary.
23. FINANCE COST (` in lacs)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016Interest Expenses 1041.73 1083.41Other Borrowing Cost 196.64 194.41

Total 1238.37 1277.8223.1 Interest includes ` 26.87 lacs ( Previous year ` 44.71 lacs) towards interest on entry tax.
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24. OTHER EXPENSES (` in lacs)
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

MANUFACTURING EXPENSESPower & Fuel 9605.27 8753.01Stores & Spares Consumption 4090.66 3639.01Packing 2853.18 2771.40Job Charges 1322.49 665.17Excise duty on increase/decrease in Finished Stock 66.61   (17.69)Repairs & Maintenance:Plant & Machinery 928.14 771.58Buildings 755.43 574.64Others 38.30 31.96Other expenses 442.02 354.54
20102.10 17543.62

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSESRent 62.43 55.99Insurance (Net) 56.93 31.31Rates & Taxes 17.72 9.40Travelling & Conveyance 243.41 193.33Legal & Professional Expenses 803.13 120.63Telecommunication Expenses 15.87 13.90Directors fees and Expenses 0.74 0.58Expenditure towards Corporate SocialResponsibility(CSR)activities 26.66       33.78Payment to Auditorsfor Audit fee 2.70 2.70for Tax Audit fee 0.90 0.90for Expenses 2.61 2.41Other expenses 407.47 288.40
1640.57 753.33

SELLING EXPENSESCommission, rebates etc 143.47 159.61Carriage outward (Net) 563.27 359.30Bad debts written off 161.82 457.74Less: Provision for doubtful debts 28.81 133.01 46.31 411.43Provision for doubtful debts 65.82 46.67Sales Promotion & Advertisement 50.77 35.36Insulators testing charges 115.60 79.96Other expenses 43.96 28.65
1115.90 1120.98

OTHER EXPENSESLease rent on land 0.44 0.05
0.44 0.05

Total 22859.01 19417.98
 Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.201624.1 Value of  stores,spare parts and components consumed: ` in lacs (%) ` in lacs (%)Imported 274.56 6.71 108.17 2.97Indigenous 3816.10 93.29 3530.84 97.03

Total 4090.66 100.00 3639.01 100.00
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25. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (` in lacs)
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016FD Interest written back pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation 503.34 -Interest written back on account of waiver under amnesty schemeunder Rajasthan Tax on entry of Goods into Local Area Act, 1999 - 456.37

503.34 456.37
26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR (` in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016i) Guarantees given by bankers on behalf of the Company 1708.52 2254.98ii) Outstanding Letters of Credit 143.45 73.18iii) Disputed liabilities, not acknowledged as debts 511.55 112.06iv) Disputed Income Tax demand 7.50 7.50Deposited under protest ` 7.50 lacs(Previous Year ` 7.50 lacs)v) Disputed Land Tax demand 15.70 15.70Deposited under protest ` 15.70 lacs(Previous Year ` 15.70 lacs)vi) Disputed Excise duty /Service Tax demands 433.80 377.90Deposited under protest ` 21.07 lacs(Previous Year ` 20.28 lacs)

27. COMMITMENTS (` in lacs)
As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, notprovided for (net of advances) 2409.51 2450.5928 Profit for the year has been arrived at after adjusting prior year debits ` 25.42 lacs (Previous year ` 9.84 lacs) and prior year credits ` 10.00 lac (Previous year` 3.69 lacs). Expenses/Income arisen/settled during the year have been charged to revenue.29 Long term loans and advances include interest free loan of ` 1457 lacs (Previous year ` 5982.16 lacs) paid to a company covered under section 189 ofCompanies Act 2013 in view of proposed amalgamation, awaiting approvals from National Company Law Tribunal. (Maximum amount due at any timeduring the year ` 1457 lacs; previous year ` 6672.91 lacs). Since the amount paid is in connection to proposed amalgamation scheme, no terms have beenspecified for repayment of loan and interest. In view of likely advantage to the Company on such amalgamation, granting of such loan is not prejudicial to theinterest of the company.
30 Loan to subsidiary company: (` in lacs)

Name of the Company As at As at Maximum balance during the year
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016Motile Power Trade Pvt. Ltd. - 1300.00 1300.00 1300.0031 Research and Development expenditure debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss by charge to relevant heads of account amounting to ` 391.28 lacs(previous year  ` 401.59 lacs).

32 Segment information as per Accounting Standard 17A) Primary Segment reporting (By Business Segment) The three identified segments arei) Insulators ii) Yarn (FDY)       iii) Terry Towels
(` in lacs)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Insulators Yarn Terry Total Insulators Yarn Total
Towels

1. Segment RevenueSale 36603.40 14413.76 4361.76 55378.92 34754.30 15595.66 50349.96
2. Segment ResultProfit before Financial Expenses 4251.77 141.44 (458.71) 3934.50 4200.82 240.17 4440.99Less: Financial Expenses 1224.73 4.75 8.89 1238.37 1272.38 5.44 1277.82Profit before tax 3027.04 136.69 (467.60) 2696.13 2928.44 234.73 3163.17
3. Capital EmployedSegment Assets 26475.33 10982.22 5495.00 42952.55 29325.82 10896.85 40222.67Segment liabilities 15234.58 330.27 1295.39 16860.24 13365.77 379.69 13745.46Capital Employed 11240.75 10651.95 4199.61 26092.31 15960.05 10517.16 26477.21
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Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016Revenue by Geographical marketIn India 45204.28 41780.42Other than India 10174.64 8569.54

55378.92 50349.96Carrying Amount of Segment Assets (Trade Receivables)In India 7780.41 5260.30Other than India 3217.50 2448.54
10997.91 7708.84

33. Related party Disclosures as per Accounting Standard 18:i) Related Party Relationshipsa) Where control exists :Modern Denim Ltd.b) Key Management Personnel :Shri Sachin Ranka (Chairman & Managing Director)Shri D.B.Deshpande (Executive Director)Shri H.L. Sharma (Executive Director upto 30.09.2016)c) Relatives of Key Management Personnel and their enterprises where transactions have taken place:Shubham Corporate Advisory Services Pvt. Ltd.H.S. Ranka FoundationSmt. Smriti RankaShri Shreyans Rankaii) Transactions with related parties and outstanding at the end of the year :
(` in lacs)

Types of related Description of the nature Name Volume of transactions Outstanding Outstanding
Parties of the transactions Year ended Year ended as on as on

  31.03.17   31.03.16 31.03.17 31.03.16Where Control exists Purchase of goods Modern Terry Towels Ltd. - 2.77 - -Modern Denim Ltd. 540.37 - - -Sale of goods Modern Denim Ltd. 7.05 0.50 - -Loans & Advances given Modern Terry Towels Ltd. - 1967.30 - 5982.16Modern Denim Ltd. 1457.00 - 1457.00 -Others Modern Terry Towels Ltd. - 0.09 - -Modern Denim Ltd. 11.17 0.45 - -Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration etc. Shri Sachin Ranka 67.20 67.20 - -Shri H.L. Sharma 24.06 17.18 - -Shri D.B.Deshpande 69.50 62.57 - -Subsidiary Companies Loan given Motile Power Trade Pvt. Ltd. 1300.00 - - 1300.00Relative of key Managerial Rent paid Shubham Corporate Advisory Services Pvt. Ltd. 15.17 6.87 -  -Personnel and their enterprises Smt. Meena Ranka - 2.40 -  -Smt. Smriti Ranka 16.54 16.39 -  -Sale of investment Smt. Smriti Ranka 4.30 - - -Contribution towards H.S. Ranka Foundation 5.00 22.50  - -CSR activitiesRemuneration Shri Shreyans Ranka 20.25 17.40 -  -Fee Shri Tara Chand Chejara 4.00 - - -
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34. Earning per Share as per Accounting Standard 20 :
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016i) Net profit available for equity Shareholders (` in lacs) 2988.46 2920.60ii) Number of Equity Shares of `10/-  each 47143900 21743500iii) Basic & Diluted earning per share (`) 6.34 13.4335. a) Derivatives : Outstanding as at Balance Sheet dataParticulars Currency Amount in Foreign Currency Purpose

As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016Forward Contracts USD -            202500 Hedging for export receivablesb) Foreign currency exposures which are not hedged as at the Balance Sheet date
As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016

Payable Receivables Payable Receivables   USD 243009 1968456 248181 3086568   EURO 116001 347677 94676 628877   GBP  - 117700  - 324036. (i) Value of imports (including in transit) Calculated on CIF Basis: (` in lacs) (`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016Raw Materials 1260.96 1069.56Components & Spare Parts 280.23 229.60Capital Goods 57.82 -(ii) Expenditure in foreign currency:Selling Commission 27.32 26.22Technical Consultancy 8.52 37.08Foreign Travelling Expenses 33.28 21.85Professional Fees 25.08 -Others 7.86 5.66(iii) Earnings in foreign exchange:Export of goods calculated on FOB basis 10114.05 8401.79

37. Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 as required vide NotificationNo. GSR 308 (E) dated 30.03.2017 are provided in the table below:
(`̀̀̀̀ in lacs)

Particular SBNs Other denomination notes TotalClosing cash in hand as on 8-11-2016 2.71 10.15 12.86(+) Permitted receipts  - 67.87 67.87(-) Permitted Payments - 62.35 62.35(-) Amount deposited in Banks 2.71  - 2.71Closing cash in hand as on 30-12-2016 - 15.67 15.67

38. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary, to make them comparable with those of current year.As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the BoardFor B.L. VERMA & CO.Chartered Accountants(FRN No. 001064C)
(B.L. VERMA)Partner(Membership No. 10900)Place : JaipurDate : 29th May, 2017

Sachin Ranka – Chairman & Managing Director (DIN : 00335534)S.B.L. Jain – Independent Director (DIN : 00002582)R. Raniwala – Independent Director (DIN : 00506419)T.C. Chejara – Non-Executive Director (DIN : 07619881)D.S. Singhvi – Chief Financial OfficerGaurav Goyal – Company SecretaryPlace : Ahmedabad
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017
(` in lacs)

Particulars 2016-2017 2015-2016
(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIESNet Profit  before tax 2192.79 2706.80ADJUSTMENTS FOR- Depreciation 992.94 825.40- Foreign Exchange 13.98 33.52- Interest and Bank Charges 1238.37 1277.82- Profit /(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets (0.67) 2244.62 (0.07) 2136.67Operating Profit before working capital changes 4437.41 4843.47ADJUSTMENTS FOR- Trade and other receivables (3500.53) (3824.69)- Inventories (920.06) 1580.94- Trade and other payable (147.15) (4567.74) (870.12) 3113.87Cash generation from Operations (130.33) 1729.60Interest and bank charges paid (1238.37)      (1277.82)

Net Cash used in operating activities before exceptional items (1368.70) 451.78Exceptional items                 503.34 456.37
Net Cash used in operating activities after exceptional items (865.36) 908.15

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES- Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (952.50)  (465.31)(including Capital Work in Progress)- Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment     8.70      2.36- Investment       587.37     (303.56)
Net cash used in investing activities  (356.43)    (766.51)

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES- Proceeds from BorrowingsBanks 1373.07  (115.61)Other Loan 12.39 10.44
Net Cash from financing activities 1385.46 (105.17)

NET CHANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS(A+B+C) 163.67          36.47Cash & Cash Equivalents- Opening Balance 452.28 415.81- Opening Balance of MTT transferred pursuant to amalgamation 21.82 -Cash & Cash Equivalents- Closing  Balance 637.77          452.28- The Scheme of Amalgamation between MTTL and the Company did not involve any cash outflow as the Company issued Equity Shares of theCompany to the Shareholders of erstwhile MTTL in terms of the Scheme.As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the BoardFor B.L. VERMA & CO.Chartered Accountants(FRN No. 001064C)
(B.L. VERMA)Partner(Membership No. 10900)Place : JaipurDate : 29th May, 2017

Sachin Ranka – Chairman & Managing Director (DIN : 00335534)S.B.L. Jain – Independent Director (DIN : 00002582)R. Raniwala – Independent Director (DIN : 00506419)T.C. Chejara – Non-Executive Director (DIN : 07619881)D.S. Singhvi – Chief Financial OfficerGaurav Goyal – Company SecretaryPlace : Ahmedabad
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MODERN INSULATORS LIMITEDRegistered Office : A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur-302 004Phone : 0141-4113645 E-mail : modernjaipuroffice@gmail.comCIN : L31300RJ1982PLC002460
ATTENDANCE SLIP(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting hall)

32ndAnnual General Meeting-27th September, 2017I hereby record my presence at the THIRTY TWO ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held at Registered Office of theCompany at A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur-302 004 on Wednesday the 27th September, 2017 at 4:00 P.M.Full Name of Member (IN BLOCK LETTERS) .......................................................................................................................................Folio No./ Client ID  .............................................D.P. ID ............................................. No. of Shares held ..........................................Full Name of Proxy (IN BLOCK LETTERS) ...........................................................................................................................................Member’s/Proxy’s Signature .....................................................................................................................................................................
NOTE : ADMISSION WILL BE STRICTLY PERMITTED FOR SHAREHOLDERS/VALID PROXY HOLDERS ONLY.– – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –&

MODERN INSULATORS LIMITEDRegistered Office : A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur-302 004Phone : 0141-4113645 E-mail : modernjaipuroffice@gmail.comCIN : L31300RJ1982PLC002460
PROXY FORMName of the member(s) : .......................................................................................................................................................................................................Registered Address : ..............................................................................................................................................................................................................E-mail ID : ............................................................................Folio No./Client Id : .......................................................................................DP ID : ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................I/We, being the members(s) of .............................................................................. Shares of the Modern Insulators Limited, hereby appoint.1. Name : .............................................................................. Address : .........................................................................................................Email ID : ............................................................................. Signature : ................................................................................, or failing him2. Name : .............................................................................. Address : ..........................................................................................................Email Id : .............................................................................. Signature : ................................................................................, or failing him3. Name : .............................................................................. Address : ...........................................................................................................E mail Id : ............................................................................. Signature : .......................................................................................................as may/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held onWednesday, the 27th September, 2017 at 4:00 P.M. at A-4, Vijay Path, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur - 302 004 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of suchresolutions as are indicated below :Resolution No.1 ..................... 2  ..................... 3  ..................... 4  ..................... 5  ...................... 6  ...................... 7  ...................... 8  ..................... 9  .....................Signed this ....................................................................  day of .................................................................................. 2017.Signature of Shareholder : ......................................................................................................................................................Signature of Proxy Holder(s) : .....................................................................................................................................................................

Note : This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company at A-4, Path, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur-302 004 not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the
meeting.

AffixRe 1/-RevenueStamp
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